FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED DECEMBER 6, 2005

NEW ISSUE Bank Qualified
Moody’s Rated “Aa2”

In the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, under existing law interest on the Notes is excludable from gross income and is not an item
of tax preference for federal income tax purposes. The Notes are designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations". See
"TAX EXEMPTION" herein for a more detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the
Notes. The interest on the Notes is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
$10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes

Dated: January 1, 2006 Due: March 1, 2009 — 2011

The $10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes (the “Notes”) will be dated January 1, 2006, will be fully
registered and issued in the denomination of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, and will mature on March 1 of the years
2009 through 2011. Interest on the Notes shall be payable commencing on March 1, 2006 and semi-annually thereafter
on September 1 and March 1 of each year.

MATURITY SCHEDULE

(March 1) Amount Rate Yield
2009 $2,300,000 3.50% 3.35%
2010 3,000,000 4.00 3.45
2011 4,700,000 4.00 3.53

The Notes are being issued pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Notes will be general obligations of
the City for which its full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers are pledged. The proceeds of the Notes will be
used for the purpose of making a prepayment of rentals under a lease with the Community Development Authority of the
City (the “CDA"), which the CDA will apply to a current refunding of certain of its outstanding obligations. (See "THE
FINANCING PLAN" herein.)

The Notes are not subject to call and prior redemption.

The Notes will be issued only as fully registered Notes and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as the securities depository of the Notes.
Individual purchases will be made in book-entry form only in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral
multiple thereof. Purchasers of the Notes will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Notes purchased.
(See "BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM"” herein.)

The City of Franklin Notes are offered when, as and if issued subject to the approval of legality by Quarles & Brady LLP,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel. The anticipated settlement date for the issue is on or about January 5, 2006.

ROBERT W. BAIRD & CO.
Financial Advisor
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REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT

No dealer, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by City of Franklin or by Robert W. Baird & Co.
Incorporated, the Financial Advisor, to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained
herein, and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized
by any of the foregoing. Under no circumstances shall this Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of
an offer to buy the Notes, nor shall there be any sale of the Notes, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation, or sale
would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

Robert W. Baird & Co., in its role as Financial Advisor, assisted the issuer in preparing the Official Statement. Baird
obtained information from the issuer and other sources that it believed was reliable, but cannot guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of the information in this Official Statement.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in the Official Statement. The Underwriter has reviewed
the information in this official statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal
securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the
accuracy or completeness of such information.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this

Official Statement nor any other sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the City of Franklin.
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SUMMARY

Issuer: City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Issue: $10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes.
Dated Date: January 1, 2006.
Interest Due: Commencing on March 1, 2006 and on each September 1 and March 1 thereafter. Interest

on the Notes will be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year.
Principal Due: March 1 of the years 2009 through 2011.
Redemption Provision: The Notes are not subject to call and prior redemption.

Security: The full faith, credit and resources of the City are pledged to the payment of the principal
of and the interest on the Notes as the same become due and, for said purposes, there
are levied without limitation on all the taxable property in the City direct, annual,
irrepealable taxes in each year and in such amounts which will be sufficient to meet such
principal and interest payments when due.

Purpose: The proceeds of the Notes will be used for the purpose of making a prepayment of rentals
under a lease with the Community Development Authority of the City (the “CDA”"), which
the CDA will apply to a current refunding of certain of its outstanding obligations. (See
"THE FINANCING PLAN" herein.)

Tax Status: Interest on the Notes is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
(See “TAX EXEMPTION" herein.)

Credit Rating: This issue has been assigned a "Aa2" rating by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (See
“RATING” herein.)

Bank Qualification: The Notes will be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations.”

Paying Agent: Treasurer, City of Franklin, Wisconsin.

Record Date: The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date.
Bond Years: 44,066.67 years.

Average Life: 4.407 years.

Information set forth on this page is qualified by the entire Official Statement. A full review of the entire Official statement should be
made by potential investors.



INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Official Statement presents certain information relating to the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "City" and the "State",
respectively) in connection with the sale of the City's $10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes (the “Notes”).
The Notes are issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State and the resolution adopted by the City (the
"Resolution™) and other proceedings and determinations related thereto.

All summaries of statutes, documents and the Resolution contained in this Official Statement are subject to all the
provisions of, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes, documents and the Resolution, and
references herein to the Notes are qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof included in the Resolution.
Copies of the Resolution may be obtained from the Financial Advisor upon request.

THE FINANCING PLAN

The Notes will be used for the purpose of making a prepayment of rentals under a lease with the Community
Development Authority of the City (the “CDA”), which the CDA will apply to current refunding a portion of the following
issue (the “Prior Issue”):
Community Development Authority
Redevelopment Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998B — Dated July 1, 1998
Original Amount of the Bonds: $18,145,000

Call Maturities to be Amount of Balance after Refunding
Price Redemption Date Refunded Principal Refunded (April 1, 2006)®
102% April 1, 2006 2008® $535,000 $1,175,000
102% April 1, 2006 2009-2013%® $9,235,000 $0

) Amounts in this column are for the corresponding maturities only. The total remaining balance after refunding is $2,875,000.
@ partial call.
@ Full call.

CONSTITUTIONAL STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND LIMITATIONS
CONCERNING THE CITY'S POWER TO INCUR INDEBTEDNESS

The Constitution and laws of the State limit the power of the City (and other municipalities of the State) to issue

obligations and to contract indebtedness. Such constitutional and legislative limitations include the following, which are
presented in summary form and are generally applicable to the City.

Purpose

The City may not borrow money or issue notes or bonds therefor for any purpose except those specified by statute,
which include among others the purposes for which the Notes are being issued.

General Obligation Bonds

The principal amount of every sum borrowed by the City and secured by an issue of bonds may be payable at one time in
a single payment or at several times in two or more installments; however, no installment may be made payable later
than the termination of twenty years immediately following the date of the bonds. The Common Council is required to
levy a direct, annual, irrepealable tax sufficient in amount to pay the interest on such bonds as it falls due and also to pay
and discharge the principal thereof at maturity. Bonds issued by the City to refinance or refund outstanding notes or
bonds issued by the City may be payable no later than twenty years following the original date of such notes or bonds.

Refunding Bonds

In addition to being authorized to issue bonds, the City is authorized to borrow money using refunding bonds for
refunding existing debt. To evidence such indebtedness, the City must issue its refunding bonds (with interest) payable
within a period not exceeding twenty years following the initial date of the debt to be refunded. Such refunding bonds
constitute a general obligation of the City. Refunding bonds are not subject to referendum.



Bond Anticipation Notes

In anticipation of issuing general obligation bonds or notes, the City is authorized to borrow money using bond
anticipation notes. The bond anticipation notes shall in no event be general obligations of the City, and do not constitute
an indebtedness of the City, nor a charge against its general credit or taxing power. The bond anticipation notes are
payable only from (a) proceeds of the bond anticipation notes set aside for payment of interest on the bond anticipation
notes as they become due, and, (b) proceeds to be derived from the issuance and sale of general obligation bonds or
notes which proceeds are pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the bond anticipation notes. The
maximum term of any bond anticipation notes (including any refunding) is five years.

Promissory Notes

In addition to being authorized to issue bonds, the City is authorized to borrow money using promissory notes for any
public purpose. To evidence such indebtedness, the City must issue its promissory notes (with interest) payable within a
period not exceeding ten years following the date of said notes. Such notes constitute a general obligation of the City.
Notes may be issued to refinance or refund outstanding notes or bonds. However, such notes must be payable not later
than ten years following the original date of such notes.

Debt Limit
The City has the power to contract indebtedness for purposes specified by statute so long as the principal amount thereof
does not exceed five percent of the equalized value of taxable property within the City. For information with respect to
the City's percent of legal debt incurred, see the caption "INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY-Debt Limit," herein.

THE RESOLUTION

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Resolution to be adopted by the City pursuant to the procedures
prescribed by Wisconsin Statutes. Reference is made to the Resolution for a complete recital of its terms.

Award Resolution

By way of a resolution to be adopted on December 6, 2005 (the “Award Resolution”), the Common Council will
authorize the issuance of the Notes and accept the bid (or reject all bids) of the Underwriters for the purchase of the
Notes, in accordance with bid specifications, provide the details and form of the Notes, and set out certain covenants
with respect thereto. The Award Resolution pledges the full faith, credit and resources of the City to payments of the
principal of and interest on the Notes. Pursuant to the Award Resolution, the amount of direct, annual, irrepealable
taxes levied for collection in the years 2006 through 2011 which will be sufficient to meet the principal and interest
payments on the Notes when due will be specified (or monies to pay such debt service will otherwise be
appropriated). The Award Resolution establishes separate and distinct from all other funds of the City a debt service
fund with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the Notes.



THE CITY

Common Council

The Common Council is the legislative and policy making body of the City and consists of six council members who are
elected from each of the City's aldermanic districts for three-year terms, and a mayor who is elected separately for a
three-year term. The present members, their aldermanic districts and the expiration of their respective terms of office are
as follows.

Thomas M. Taylor, Mayor

(April, 2008)

Aldermanic Expiration
Common Council District of Term
Steve Olson, Alderperson 1 April, 2007
Timothy C. Solomon, Alderperson 2 April, 2007
Alan R. Hammelman, Alderperson 3 April, 2008
Pete Kosovich, Alderperson 4 April, 2008
Lyle Sohns, Alderperson (President) 5 April, 2007
Ken Skowronski, Alderperson 6 April, 2008

Administration

The day-to-day affairs of the City is handled by the Director of Administration. The present members of the administration
and their years of service are listed below.

Years
Name Title of Service
- Director of Administration ---)
Sandra L. Wesolowski Clerk 6
Calvin A. Patterson Director of Finance/Treasurer 5
John Bennett Director of Public Works/City Engineer 36
Bill Wucherer Director of Health & Human Services 13
Dana Zahn Human Resources Coordinator ---@)
Roy Kainz Superintendent of Sewer/Water 34
Jerry Schaefer Superintendent of Public Works 30
Douglas B. Wheaton Community Development Director )
- Planning Manager D
Marty Kuehn Assessor 3%
Frederick M. Baumgart Building Inspector 32
Ronald J. Wambach Municipal Judge® 33
Richard Oliva Chief of Police ---®
James Martins Fire Chief 30

@) position is currently vacant.

@ prior to accepting the position at the City, Ms. Zahn was the Human Resources Manager for the Unified Solutions, Inc.

® prior to accepting the position at the City, Mr. Wheaton was the Government Affairs Director for Wisconsin Realtors Association.
“ Mr. Kuehn is a contracted assessor from CTL Corporation.

®) Mr. Wambach is an elected official whose term expires April, 2006.

© prior to accepting the position at the City, Mr. Oliva was a captain for the Milwaukee Police Department.

@ Prior to accepting the position at the City, Mr. Martins was a deputy chief for the Milwaukee Fire Department.



Employment Relations

Number of

Department Employees
Administration 2
Assessor 1
Building Inspection 10
Clerk 4
Community Development 1
Engineering 14
Finance 5
Fire 43
Health 9
Highways 28
Human Resources 2
Library 28
Mayor/Alderpersons 7
Municipal Buildings Maintenance 7
Municipal Court 2
Planning & Zoning 3
Police 76
Sewer/Water 13
Treasury 4

TOTAL 259

The City of Franklin employees are represented by:

Organization

Employee Group Represented

Date of Contract

Franklin Police Officers Association

Franklin Police and Fire Department

Clerical Association

Franklin Professional Firefighters Association

Local 2760 (I.A.F.F.)

Teamsters General Union
Local 200

Franklin Inspection Employees

Police officers

Dispatchers

Firefighters

Clerical employees

Local 2 (AFSCME) (AFL-CIO)

Franklin Employees

Local 2 (AFSCME) (AFL-CIO)

Public Works, Sewer and Water
and Custodial employees

Inspection employees

* In negotiation; employees are still working under the terms of the expired contracts.

December 31, 2004*
December 31, 2005

December 31, 2006

December 31, 2006

December 31, 2005

December 31, 2005

All eligible City personnel are covered by the Municipal Employment Relations Act (MERA) of the Wisconsin Statutes.
Pursuant to that law, employees have the right to organize and collectively bargain with the municipal employers. Inthe
event of impasse, the City or employee union, other than fire or law enforcement personnel, has the option to pursue
final and binding arbitration under a procedure referred to as mediation arbitration. Under this procedure, mediation is
first attempted and in the event of its failure, final and binding arbitration is commenced. If, under arbitration, both parties
withdraw their final offers, the labor organization upon proper notice, may strike. The parties can also agree to voluntary
impasse resolution procedures including authorization for a strike or binding interest arbitration. As a practical matter, it
is anticipated that strikes under either procedure will be rare. Furthermore, strikes, if they do occur, may be enjoined by
the courts. Impasse resolution for fire fighters and law enforcement personnel is subject to final and binding arbitration
procedures, which do not include a right to strike.



Pension Plan

All eligible City of Franklin Police and Fire employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System established under
Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The total required retirement plan contribution for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2004 were $947,469 and $1,089,239, respectively. The amounts of such contributions are determined by the
Wisconsin Retirement Fund and were in accordance with the actuarially determined requirement.

All eligible City of Franklin Public Works employees (highway, janitors, sewer and water employees) are covered by a
non-contributory single employer defined benefit pension plan. The total required retirement plan contribution for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 were $191,468 and $204,665, respectively. The amounts of such
contributions are determined by an actuarial valuation dated January 1, 2004.

All other eligible City of Franklin employees participate in a defined contribution plan. The City contributes 10% of
covered payroll that amounted to $279,939 and $310,082 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004,
respectively.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Location

The City of Franklin is located in southeastern Wisconsin and encompasses approximately 34.5 square miles of the
southwestern portion of Milwaukee County. Itis located approximately 10 miles southwest of Milwaukee, 80 miles east
of Madison, 85 miles northwest of Chicago and 130 miles south of Green Bay.

History

Franklin, a part of the Northwest Territory, was given the name "Franklin" in honor of Benjamin Franklin in 1838 by the
Wisconsin Territorial Legislature and was organized into a township in 1841. Franklin's early town officials fought
against annexation to the City of Milwaukee. In 1956 a City charter arrived from Madison to incorporate from a town to a
city. Bounded by Greenfield to the north, Oak Creek to the east, and Racine and Waukesha Counties to the south and
west, the City is primarily a residential community with a growing commercial and industrial base.

Education

The City is served by the Franklin, Oak-Creek Franklin and Whitnall School Districts, which offer comprehensive
educational programs for students in pre-kindergarten through the twelfth grade. Between these schools, residents are
served by a total of three high schools, four middle schools and twelve elementary schools.

Post-secondary education is available nearby at several schools in the University of Wisconsin (“UW”) System. UW-
Madison, Milwaukee and Whitewater, all four-year colleges, offer programs at the undergraduate, graduate and
professional levels in a wide range of fields, while UW-Waukesha and Washington County offer freshman/sophomore
level instruction. The Milwaukee Area Technical College, also a two-year institution that has campuses located in
Milwaukee, Mequon, Oak Creek and West Allis, offers a variety of education and training opportunities through several
associate degree and technical diploma programs. Private four-year colleges in the Milwaukee Metropolitan area
include the following:
Alverno College
Cardinal Stritch University
Carroll College
Columbia College of Nursing
Concordia University
Marquette University
Medical College of Wisconsin
Milwaukee Institute of Art and Design
Milwaukee School of Engineering
Mount Mary College
Ottawa University
Wisconsin Lutheran College



Transportation

The City is easily accessible via Interstates 94 and 43, US Highways 41 and 45, State Highways 36 and 100, and
several County Highways.

Three general aviation airports serve area residents: General Mitchell International Airport is located 8 miles northeast
of the City, John H. Batten Field is located 10 miles to the southeast, and Chicago's OHare International Airport is
located 70 miles to the south.

Rail freight service is accessible in nearby Oak Creek via the CP Rail System and the Union Pacific Railway on their
Chicago to Minneapolis-St. Paul mainlines.

Water transportation is available through the Port of Milwaukee, which is located 12 miles northeast of the City.
Public transit is available through Freeway Flyer and shuttle bus routes operated by the Milwaukee County Transit
System, and elderly and disabled residents also have access to specialized transportation services provided by two

Milwaukee County programs.

Police, Fire and Public Safety

The Franklin Police Department provides law enforcement services to the City 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, which
include protecting of life and property, preserving peace and good order of the community, and furnishing any other
appropriate service that enhances the safe and orderly operation of the City.

The Franklin Fire Department's Mission is to render any service it is capable of delivering to protect the lives and
property of the citizens within its jurisdiction. It will provide educational activities to the residents and actively promote
fire prevention, and will provide these services as efficiently as possible within the limits of funding provided by the
citizens of Franklin.

The City is now part of a cooperative effort with other Milwaukee County communities to jointly operate an animal control
services facility, governed by the Milwaukee Area Domestic Animal Control Commission (“MADACC"), for animal control
purposes.

Other Services

The City provides standard services such as street maintenance and lighting, snow and ice removal, waste collection
and disposal, recycling facilities, water, solid waste and sanitary sewerage services, and a public library.

The City provides for the public safety of its residents through the Police Department with seventy-six full-time
employees. The Police Department provides patrol, dispatch services, traffic control services, crime prevention and
detection, investigations and community relations. The Fire Department has twenty-nine full-time employees, and the
Emergency Medical Service Department has fifteen full-time employees. In addition to fire suppression and prevention,
the department provides fire inspections, community education, paramedic level medical transportation and specialized
rescues.

Health Care

The City's health care needs are served by the St. Luke's Franklin Health Care Center, Rawson Medical Center and
Associated Surgical Clinic. The Franklin Health Department, located at the Franklin City Hall, offers immunizations for all
ages, health screenings, including blood pressure clinics, a school health program, communicable disease education
and follow-up, and an environmental health program including restaurant inspection and a sharps/syringe collection site
in the Health Department. In addition, the City is served by the complete range of health facilities and health
professionals offered by Milwaukee County's 24 area hospitals and various immediate care centers. Of special interest
is the Milwaukee Regional Medical Center, a voluntary consortium of private, nonprofit, and governmental institutions
dedicated to the delivery of health care, the education of health personnel, and the conduct of health-related research.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Population

Milwaukee City of

County Franklin

Estimate, 2005 938,995 32,548

Estimate, 2004 939,358 31,804

Estimate, 2003 941,301 31,467

Estimate, 2002 941,091 30,749

Estimate, 2001 939,919 30,199

Census, 2000 940,164 29,494

Source: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Demographic Services Center.

Per Tax Return Adjusted Gross Income

State of Milwaukee City of
Wisconsin County Franklin

2004 $43,512 $38,350 $58,216
2003 42,474 37,459 56,755
2002 40,719 36,370 55,928
2001 40,847 37,111 54,510
2000 40,570 36,868 56,255

Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Division of Research and Analysis.

Unemployment Rate

State of Milwaukee City of

Wisconsin County Franklin

October, 2005 3.8% 5.2% 3.2%
October, 2004 4.0 55 34

Average, 2004 4.9% 6.3% 4.2%
Average, 2003 5.6 7.1 4.7
Average, 2002 5.3 6.6 4.5
Average, 2001 4.4 54 3.5
Average, 2000 3.4 4.2 2.8

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.

2005 Estimated Effective Buying Income (“E.B.1.")

Percent of Households in E.B.l. Range

United State of Milwaukee
States Wisconsin County
under $19,000 ......cooiveeiiiieiiie e 21.5% 19.6% 25.3%
20,000 - 34,999 .....oiiiiiieie s 22.5 235 25.5
35,000 - 49,999 ... .ot 19.3 22.9 20.7
50,000 @Nd OVET .....ccoiivieiiiiiiee et 36.7 34.0 28.5
TOAS .ot 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Median Household Effective Buying Income........ $39,324 $38,991 $34,510
Average Household Effective Buying Income....... 51,284 46,855 42,436
Per Capita Effective Buying Income.................... 19,289 18,468 17,204

Source: Survey of Buying Power, “Sales and Management Magazine”, September 2005.
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Building Permits

Number of
Valuation Permits
2005 as of 6/30 $49,627,523 310
2004 88,938,852 558
2003 96,189,402 365
2002 145,807,004* 374
2001 67,254,395 411

* Valuation includes large commercial building.

Source: City of Franklin.

Largest Employers

Number of
Employer Type of Business Employees
Northwestern Mutual Insurance/investment firm 800
Franklin Public School District Education 541
Milwaukee County House of Corrections Government 450
General Automotive Manufacturing LLC Mfr. - Off-road engine components 400
Krones Inc. Mfr. - High-speed labeling machines & fillers 400
Waste Management of Wisconsin Solid waste/landfill services 340
Wal-Mart Retall 280
All-Glass Agquarium Company Inc. Mfr./Distribtr. - Glass aquariums, wooden 280

stands & lights

City of Franklin Government 259
BD Medical Systems Mfr. - Medical devices/syringes 220

Source: 2005 Wisconsin Manufacturers and Business Service Directories, employer calls.

Largest Taxpayers

2004 Assessed 2004 Equalized

Name Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Northwestern Mutual Insurance/investment firm $47,326,600 $50,076,338
Whitnall Pointe Apartments Apartments 20,709,900 21,913,172
Manchester Oaks Apartments 18,628,030 19,710,343
Wal-Mart Retail 16,543,670 17,504,879
Waste Management of Wisconsin Solid waste/landfill services 14,962,380 15,831,714
Harley Davidson Motor Company Mfr. - Motorcycles 14,432,600 15,271,153
TP Mission Hills Apartments Apartments 13,612,100 14,402,981
All-Glass Aguarium Company Inc. Mfr./Distribtr. - Glass aquariums, 11,721,400 12,402,429

wooden stands & lights

Covenant Healthcare Medical clinic 10,071,890 10,657,080
Krones Inc. Mfr. - High-speed labeling machines & 8,599,600 9,099,248

Source: City of Franklin.

fillers
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TAX LEVIES, RATES COLLECTIONS

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or village
treasurer in full by January 31. Real property taxes may be paid in full by January 31 or in installments with one-half of
the taxes paid by January 31, one quarter are paid by March 31 and the remainder is paid by May 31. Any amounts paid
after July 31 are paid to the county treasurer. The City of Franklin, which has adopted an installment payment plan,
settles with other taxing jurisdictions for collections through the preceding month on January 15, February 15 and the
15th day of each month following a month in which an installment payment is due. On or before August 20, the county
treasurer must settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all unpaid real property taxes and special taxes. The
County Board may authorize its County Treasurer to also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special
assessments and special charges. The county may then recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the
property and retain any penalties or interest on the delinquencies for which it has settled. Since, in practice, all
delinquent real estate taxes are withheld from the county's share of taxes, the City receives 100 percent of the real
estate taxes it levies.

Set forth below are the taxes levied and the tax rate per $1,000 assessed value on all taxable property within the City.
The rates, tax levies and collections set forth are for the collection years 2002 through 2006:

Uncollected Personal Percent
Levy Collection City Tax City Property Taxes as of of Levy
Year Year Rate Levy August 20 of Each Year Collected
2005 2006 $6.83 $17,566,000 - To Be Collected -
2004 2005 6.95 16,899,300 $53,237 99.68%
2003* 2004 6.80 15,813,611 65,425 99.59
2002 2003 8.17 15,606,851 57,488 99.63
2001 2002 8.06 14,861,543 83,606 99.44

* Reflects City-wide reassessment.
LEVY LIMIT LEGISLATION

The State of Wisconsin's Budget Bill (2005 Act 25) was signed by the Governor on July 25, 2005, after the exercise of
numerous partial vetoes, and became effective on July 27, 2005. This legislation imposes a limit on property tax levies
by cities, villages, towns and counties for a two-year period. It provides that no city, village, town or county may increase
its tax levy in any year by a percentage that exceeds its valuation factor (which is defined as the percentage change in
the municipality's January 1 equalized value due to new construction less improvements removed, but not less than two
percent).

This levy limitation is an overall limit, applying to levies for operations as well as for other purposes. Special provisions
are made for general obligation debt service. With respect to obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of
debt service in the preceding year is less than the amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is
increased by the difference between the two amounts. The Department of Revenue currently interprets this adjustment
to be based on scheduled debt service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service (after taking into account
offsetting revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax increment revenues or surplus
funds). Therefore, the levy limit could negatively impact municipalities that experience a reduction in offsetting revenues.
The limits do not apply to debt service on obligations authorized on or after July 1, 2005.

The Notes were authorized by adoption of a resolution after July 1, 2005.

In formulating its tax levy for 2006, the growth in new construction in the City would have allowed a tax levy increase of
4.948 percent, but the City’s tax levy was increased by only 3.945 percent.
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City of Franklin
School Districts:

Franklin

Oak Creek

Whitnall
Milwaukee Area Technical College
Milwaukee County
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
State

Gross Tax Rate:
Franklin Public School District
Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District
Whitnall School District

Less: State Credit

Net Tax Rate:
Franklin Public School District
Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District
Whitnall School District

Ratio of Assessed to

Equalized Valuation

Equalized Tax Rate:
Franklin Public School District

Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District
Whitnall School District

* Reflects City-wide reassessment.

ASSESSED TAX RATES

Levy Years
2004 2003* 2002 2001 2000*
$6.95 $6.80 $8.17 $8.06 $7.61
12.61 12.74 13.86 14.50 13.89
7.93 8.42 10.19 9.95 8.98
11.30 10.80 12.71 12.52 13.22
2.05 1.95 2.24 2.13 2.05
4.81 4.72 5.67 5.65 5.60
1.62 1.57 1.89 1.78 1.72
0.21 0.20 0.22 0.21 0.20
28.25 27.98 32.05 32.33 31.07
23.57 23.66 28.38 27.78 26.16
26.94 26.04 30.90 30.35 30.40
(1.50) (1.55) (1.92) (1.99) (2.10)
26.75 26.43 30.13 30.34 28.97
22.07 2211 26.46 25.79 24.06
25.44 24.49 28.98 28.36 28.30
94.74% 101.13% 89.77% 95.28% 98.86%
$25.34 $26.73 $27.05 $28.91 $28.64
$20.91 $22.36 $23.75 $24.57 $23.79
$24.10 $24.77 $26.02 $27.02 $27.98

14



ASSESSED AND EQUALIZED VALUATIONS

All equalized valuations of property in the State of Wisconsin are determined by the State of Wisconsin, Department of
Revenue, Supervisor of Assessments Office. Equalized valuations are the State's estimate of full market value. The
State determines assessed valuations of all manufacturing property in the State. Assessed valuations of residential and
commercial property are determined by local assessors.

Set forth in the table below are the assessed and equalized valuations of property located within the City for the years
2001 through 2005. The City equalized valuation has increased by 49.55 percent since 2001 with an average annual
increase of 10.58 percent.

Assessed Equalized Valuation Equalized Valuation
Year Valuation (TID IN) (TID OUT)
2005 $2,682,091,060 $3,030,815,900 $2,908,557,900
2004 2,540,818,170 2,681,945,500 2,566,348,500
2003* 2,427,882,640 2,400,765,500 2,298,454,900
2002 1,995,679,040 2,223,010,500 2,127,136,800
2001 1,931,074,470 2,026,671,300 1,934,224,400

* Reflects City-wide reassessment.

The equalized valuation by class in the City for 2005 is as follows:

Tax Increment District

Amount Percent of Total
Real Estate
Residential $2,236,076,000 73.78%
Commercial 595,070,200 19.63
Manufacturing 101,025,800 3.33
Agricultural, Undeveloped,
Forest, Other 23,132,500 0.76
Total Real Estate 2,955,304,500 97.51
Total Personal Property 75,511,400 2.49
Total $3,030,815,900 100.00%

S

The City has Tax Incremental Districts created under Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105 (formerly Section 66.46). TID
valuations totaling $122,258,000 have been excluded from the City's tax base for 2005. The City has also created Tax
Incremental Districts No. 03 and 04 in 2005. TID valuations have not yet been certified.

City of Fran

klin Creation Date Base Value

2005 Value Increment

02

1993 $2,229,400
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INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY

Direct Indebtedness

Set forth below is the direct indebtedness of the City, including principal and interest payments due on existing debt as well as debt service on the new issue. The
interest on the Notes has been calculated using an average rate of 3.917 percent. Average life of the Notes is 4.407 years and bond years are 44,066.67 years.

Total Less: Projected Total Projected
Outstanding Bonds & Notes New Issue Debt Service Offsetting Net Debt Service
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements Revenues* Requirements
2006 $1,300,000 $1,433,187 $259,000 $2,992,187 ($711,090) $2,281,097
2007 2,350,000 1,338,485 388,500 4,076,985 (1,266,483) 2,810,502
2008 2,925,000 1,224,866 388,500 4,538,366 (2,136,554) 2,401,813
2009 3,300,000 1,090,998 $2,300,000 348,250 7,039,248 (2,514,923) 4,524,325
2010 2,925,000 957,173 3,000,000 248,000 7,130,173 (2,143,648) 4,986,525
2011 3,180,000 824,510 4,700,000 94,000 8,798,510 (2,451,873) 6,346,637
2012 1,700,000 719,860 - - 2,419,860 (1,305,400) 1,114,460
2013 2,270,000 637,270 - - 2,907,270 (1,656,500) 1,250,770
2014 2,780,000 532,925 - - 3,312,925 (1,926,800) 1,386,125
2015 2,915,000 415,935 - - 3,330,935 (1,959,750) 1,371,185
2016 955,000 332,955 - - 1,287,955 (430,500) 857,455
2017 900,000 288,098 - - 1,188,098 (430,500) 757,598
2018 1,150,000 237,985 - - 1,387,985 (555,500) 832,485
2019 1,210,000 180,165 - - 1,390,165 (655,500) 734,665
2020 1,480,000 114,260 - - 1,594,260 (706,520) 887,740
2021 1,560,000 39,000 - - 1,599,000 (758,000) 841,000
Total $32,900,000 $10,367,670 $10,000,000 $1,726,250 $54,993,920 ($21,609,540) $33,384,380

* The above outstanding debt was issued as general obligation debt of the City; however tax increment revenues, special assessments and other revenues are projected to partially
offset the total debt service. The actual amount of these offsetting revenues is not guaranteed.



Other Debt

The following issues are not general obligations of the City:

= One Community Development Authority Taxable Redevelopment Lease Revenue Bond issue, Series 1998-A dated
July 1, 1998, totaling $3,375,000 in principal maturing 2006 through 2008.

= One Community Development Authority Redevelopment Lease Revenue Refunding Bond issue, Series 1998-B
dated July 1, 1998, totaling $4,445,000 in principal maturing 2006 through 2008, excluding the maturities to be
refunded that will be repaid on April 1, 2006 with proceeds from the Notes. (See "THE FINANCING PLAN" herein.)

Future Financing

The City does not anticipate the issuance of additional long-term debt within the next six months.

Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness

Set forth below is information relating to the outstanding overlapping and underlying indebtedness of the City.

Amount of Debt Percent Outstanding Debt

(Net of 2005 Chargeable Chargeable

Name of Entity Principal Amounts) to City to City
Milwaukee County $436,007,238 5.30% $23,108,384
Milwaukee Area Technical College District 75,165,000 4.40 3,307,260
Franklin Public School District 22,100,000 100.00 22,100,000
Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District 35,155,265 16.80 5,906,085
Whitnall School District 7,710,000 13.90 1,071,690
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District 285,335,000 5.30 15,122,755
TOTAL $861,472,503 $70,616,173

Statistical Summary

Set forth in the following table is a statistical summary of certain information relating to the City.

2005 Equalized Valuation

Direct Bonded Indebtedness Including this Issue
(Less 2005 Principal Amounts)

$3,030,815,900

$42,900,000

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness Including this Issue

(Less 2005 Principal Amounts)

$113,516,173

Direct Bonded Indebtedness as a Percentage of Equalized Valuation 1.42%

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness as a Percentage of

Equalized Valuation 3.75%
Population of City (2005 Estimate) 32,548
Direct Bonded Indebtedness Per Capita $1,318.05
Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Bonded Indebtedness Per Capita $3,487.65
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Debt Limit

As described under the caption "CONSTITUTIONAL STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS LIMITATIONS CONCERNING
THE CITY'S POWER TO INCUR INDEBTEDNESS--Debt Limit," the total indebtedness of the City may not exceed five
percent of the equalized value of property in the City. Set forth in the table below is a comparison of the outstanding
indebtedness of the City as a percentage of the applicable debt limit.

Equalized Valuation (2005) as certified by Wisconsin Department of Revenue $3,030,815,900

Legal Debt Percentage Allowed 5.00%
Legal Debt Limit $151,540,795
Direct Bonded Indebtedness Including this Issue

(Less 2005 Principal Amounts) $42,900,000
Unused Margin of Indebtedness $108,640,795
Percent of Legal Debt Incurred 28.31%
Percentage of Legal Debt Available 71.69%

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial operations of the City are conducted through its general fund, library fund and capital equipment funds.
Most taxes and non-tax revenues (such as license fees, fines and costs and user's fees) are paid into the general fund
and current operating expenditures are made from the general fund pursuant to appropriations made by the Common
Council. Taxes levied for debt service are paid directly into the debt service fund and debt service expenditures are
made from that fund.

Budgeting Process

The City is required by State law to annually formulate a budget and to hold public hearings thereon prior to the
determination of the amounts to be financed in whole or in part by general property taxes, funds on hand or estimated
revenues from other sources. Such budget must list existing indebtedness of the City and all anticipated revenue from
all sources during the ensuing year and must also list all proposed appropriations for each department, activity and
reserve account of the City during the ensuing year. The budget must show actual revenues and expenditures for the
preceding year, actual revenues and expenditures for not less than the first six months of the current year and estimated
revenues and expenditures for the balance of the current year.

As part of the budgeting process, public hearings are held on the proposed budget, at which time any resident or
taxpayer in the City may be heard. At an annual meeting in November of each year, the Common Council adopts the
final budget for the succeeding year and levies taxes based on assessed valuations of property less any increment
attributable to Tax Increment Districts. The amount of taxes so levied and the amounts of the various appropriations in
the final budget (after any alterations made pursuant to public hearings) may not be changed unless authorized by a vote
of two-thirds of the entire membership of the Common Council. Failure to publish notice of any such alteration within ten
days thereafter shall preclude any change in the budget.

Financial Records

The City maintains its financial records on a calendar year basis. Appendix A hereto sets forth the General Fund
financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2004, which have been examined by Virchow, Krause
& Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The City did not ask Virchow,
Krause & Company, LLP to perform any additional review in connection with this Official Statement.
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GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Interdepartmental charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)

Net other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balances - beginning of year
Fund balances - end of year

2006
PROPOSED 2005 2004 2003 2002
BUDGET ESTIMATED ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL
$14,008,000 $13,383,300 $11,711,134 $11,051,639  $10,316,760
2,601,000 2,582,700 2,641,983 2,930,916 2,843,462
1,161,450 1,053,500 1,258,457 1,030,984 1,254,563
450,000 450,000 397,169 362,638 414,878
1,509,100 1,370,584 1,607,075 1,682,030 1,642,046
563,000 548,000 575,009 628,953 607,395
- - - - 5,094
262,500 240,500 177,420 276,385 -
140,950 140,200 136,127 118,663 539,291
20,696,000 19,768,784 18,504,374 18,082,208 17,623,489
2,518,252 2,622,572 2,262,025 2,293,560 2,069,034
13,305,286 12,649,614 12,102,357 11,237,842 10,584,319
4,138,537 3,868,816 3,580,392 3,395,468 3,134,753
551,678 460,241 468,087 494,215 446,005
187,616 154,819 134,440 130,067 263,853
553,631 540,070 374,864 428,151 316,592
391,000 234,925 - - -
21,646,000 20,531,057 18,922,165 17,979,303 16,814,556
(950,000) (762,273) (417,791) 102,905 808,933
950,000 940,000 634,462 462,500 -
- (200,000) (40,073) (6,982) -
950,000 740,000 594,389 455,518 -
$0 ($22,273) 176,598 558,423 808,933
6,106,240 5,547,817 4,738,884
$6,282,838 $6,106,240 $5,547,817

The amounts shown for the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2004 are excerpts from the audit reports that have
been examined by Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
The amounts shown for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 are shown on a budgetary basis. The comparative
statement of revenues, expenditures and encumbrances should be read in conjunction with the other financial statements
and Notes thereto appearing at Appendix A to this Official Statement. The Auditor was not asked to perform any additional
review in connection with this Official Statement.

19



UNDERWRITING

The Notes have been purchased at a public sale by a group of Underwriters for whom Robert W. Baird & Co.
Incorporated, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, is acting as Managing Underwriter. The Underwriter intends to offer the Notes to
the public initially at the prices which produce the yields set forth on the first page of this Official Statement plus accrued
interest from January 1, 2006, which prices may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. The
Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the Notes to the public. The
Underwriter may offer and sell the Notes to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Notes into investment trusts)
at prices lower than the public offering prices. In connection with this offering, the Underwriter may over allocate or
effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Notes at a level above that which might otherwise
prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

The reoffering prices shown on the cover of this Official Statement have been provided by the Underwriter, and not by
the Issuer.

RATING

This issue has been assigned a "Aa2" rating by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Such rating reflects only the views of
such organization and explanations of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the rating agency furnishing
the same. There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency circumstances so
warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the
Notes.

TAX EXEMPTION

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Notes under existing law substantially in the following form:

"The interest on the Notes is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the owners
of the Notes. The interest on the Notes is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on
corporations (as that term is defined for federal income tax purposes) and individuals. However, for purposes
of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations, the interest on the Notes is included in
adjusted current earnings. The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance
of the Notes in order for interest on the Notes to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal
income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the
Notes to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Notes. The Issuer has agreed
to comply with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject
to the condition that the Issuer comply with those requirements. We express no opinion regarding other
federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Notes."

The interest on the Notes is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

Prospective purchasers of the Notes should be aware that ownership of the Notes may result in collateral federal income
tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financial institutions, property and casualty
insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with
"excess net passive income", foreign corporations subject to the branch profits tax and taxpayers who may be deemed to
have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry the Notes. Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as
to such collateral tax consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Notes should consult their tax advisors as to
collateral federal income tax consequences.

From time to time, legislation is proposed which, if enacted, could alter one or more of the federal tax matters referred to
above or would adversely affect the market value of the Notes. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any of
such proposals may be enacted and whether, if enacted, such proposals will apply to obligations (such as the Notes)
issued prior to enactment.
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DESIGNATION AS QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Issuer will designate the Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax
purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule"), the Issuer shall covenant pursuant to a
Award Resolution adopted by the Governing Body to enter into an undertaking (the "Undertaking") for the benefit of
holders including beneficial holders of the Notes to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the
Issuer to certain information repositories annually, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events enumerated
in the Rule to certain information repositories or the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and to any state information
depository. The details and terms of the Undertaking, as well as the information to be contained in the annual report or
the notices of material events, are set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed and delivered by the
Issuer at the time the Notes are delivered. Such Certificate will be in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix
B. The Issuer has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings under the Rule to
provide annual reports or notices of material events. A failure by the Issuer to comply with the Undertaking will not
constitute an event of default on the Notes (although holders will have the right to obtain specific performance of the
obligations under the Undertaking). Nevertheless, such a failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must
be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the
Notes in the secondary market. Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the
Notes and their market price.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Notes. The Notes will
be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Note certificate will be issued
for each maturity of the Notes, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a
“clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset
servicing for over 2.2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.
This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-
U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a
number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income
Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, FICC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of
DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-
U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard &
Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.
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Purchases of Notes under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit
for the Notes on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Note (“Beneficial Owner”) is in
turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations
providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Notes are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Notes, except in the event that
use of the book-entry system for the Notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Notes deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC'’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. The deposit of Notes with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do
not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Notes;
DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Notes are credited, which may
or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of
their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sentto DTC. If less than all of the securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Notes unless authorized
by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy
to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing
attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC'’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will
be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of
customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC,
Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of
redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Notes at any time by giving reasonable
notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Note
certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, Note certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC'’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that
Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

LITIGATION
There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or, to the knowledge of the City of Franklin, threatened,

restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Notes, or in any way contesting or affecting the
validity of the Notes or any proceedings of the City taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Notes are subject to the unqualified approving opinion of
Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel. A copy of such opinion will accompany the Notes and will be available at the time
of the delivery of the Notes.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Robert W. Baird & Co., Milwaukee, Wisconsin has acted as Financial Advisor to the City of Franklin in connection with
the issuance of the Notes.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statement made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so expressly
stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates
will be realized.

Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass on its accuracy,
completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined or attempted to examine or verify any of the financial or
statistical statements or data contained in this Official Statement, and will express no opinion with respect thereto. The
execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Clerk has been duly authorized by the City.

In accordance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12, the Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final except for the omission of
certain information described in the rule.

AUTHORIZATION

This Official Statement has been approved for distribution to prospective purchasers and the Underwriter of the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, $10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, dated January 1, 2006.

The City, acting through its City Clerk, will provide to the Underwriter of the above Notes at the time of delivery of the
Notes, a certificate confirming to the Underwriter that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, the Official Statement with
respect to the Notes, together with any supplements thereto, at the time of acceptance of the adoption of the Award
Resolution and at the time of delivery of the Notes, was true and correct in all material respect and did not at any time
contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated, where necessary to
make the statements in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By /s/ Sandra L. Wesolowski
City Clerk
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APPENDIX A

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND RELATED NOTES

CITY OF FRANKLIN

MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

For year ended December 31, 2004

Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

The Auditor was not asked to perform any additional review
in connection with this Official Statement.



CITY OF FRANKLIN

TABLE OF CONTENTS
December 31, 2004

[THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Audilers’ Reporl 11
Management's Discussion and Analysis 13

Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit
Government-wide Financial Slalements;
Stalement of Net Assets A 25
Stalement of Aclivilies B 26
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds C 27
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances — Governmenlai Funds D 28
Reconciliation of (he Statement of Revenue, Expendilures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Slatemenl of Activilies E 29
General Fund - Statemenl of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget ang Aclual (on a Budgelary Basis) F 30
Slalement of Net Assels — Proprietary Funds G a
Slatement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Nel Assels - Proprietary Funds H 33
Slalement of Cash Flows — Praprietary Funds | 34
Slatement of Fiduciary Nel Assels - Fiduciary Funds J 36

MNaotes to Financial Statements 37 - 68



:

VirchowKrause
company

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPQRT

To the Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin
Franklin, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activilies, the discretely presented compenent unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Ine City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as of and for lhe year
ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the city's basic financial slatements as
listed in the lable of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of
Franklin's managemenl. Qur responsibilily is 1o express opinions on Ihese financial statements
based on our augit. The prior year comparative infarmation for the enterprise funds has been
derived from the City of Franklin's 2003 financial stalemenis and. in our report dated March 18,
2004, we expressed an unqualified opinion on the respective financial slalements of the
governmental activilies, the business-type aclivilies, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fung information.

We conducled our audil in accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in ihe Unitad
States of America. Those standards require thal we plan and perform lhe zudit to abtain
reagonable assurance about whether the financial stalemenls are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a tes! basis, evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures
in the financral statemenis. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used ang
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe thal aur audil provides a reasonable basis for our apinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental aclivitias, the business-lype aclivities, the
discretely presenled componenl unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Cily of Franklin, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2004, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash fows. where applicable. thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally zccepled in the United Stales of America.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 24 is aol a required parl of the
basic financial slatements but is supplemeniary information required by the Governmenlal
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied cerain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did nol audit the information and
express no opinion on it.
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Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP
Certlfied Public Accountanty & Cantuitaniy » An [ndedrndent Hamber af Bakzr Tilly taternational

To the Mayor and Gommon Council
City of Franklin

Our audit was conducled far the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Franklin's basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statemenis and schedules as listed in lhe table of contenls are
presenied for purposes of additional analysis and are nel a required parl of the basic knancial
statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic finaacial statements and, in
our opinion. are faicly stated in all material respecls in relation ta the basic financral statements
taken as a whole.

The “Letter of Transmiltal” and *Statislical Section” listed in the accompanying lable of contenls
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements af the Gity of Franklin, Wisconsin. The infermalion has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial stalements and. accordingly,
we express no opinion on such information,

Vidyy | Kovere ¥ lomgrary [ LLF

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
March 11, 2005
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Franklin (City), we offer readers of the City's financial
statements lhis narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. We encourage readers to consider the informatian
presented here in cenjunction with additional information thal we have furnished in our loller
of transmiltal, which can be found on pages 1-6 of this report,

Financial Highlights

* The assels of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2004, by $110,370,675
{net assets). Of this amount, $10,974,543 {unrestricted net assels) may be used to
meet the government's ongoing obligalions fo citizens and creditors. The total net assels
include infrastructure of the governmental funds installed during 2003 and 2004. Frior
year's governmental funds infrastructure has not yet been included in these staternents.

+ The City's lotal net assets increased by a net amount of $24,312.777. Invesiment in
capilal assets, net of relaled debt accounted for a $25,544,929 increase, operating
activities accounted for a $915,651 decrease with all other changes accounting for a
$316,501 decrease.

= The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2004, combined ending fund
balances of $14,154,460, a decrease of $915,651 from the prior year. Approximately 71
percent aof the total fund balance, or $10,015277, is available for spending at the
government's discretion (unreserved fund balance).

» The unreserved fund balance as of December 31, 2004 for the general fund was
$6,150,910 or approximately 30 percent of total anticipated 2005 general fund
expenditures.

» The City's total general obligation debt decreased by $4,000,000 (13.9%) during 2004, In
addition to normal repayments of $2,250,000 the balance of 1996 General Obligation
Bonds of the Cily (51,750,000} were retired.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) governmenl-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial siatements, and 3) notes to lhe
financial statements. This report also contains olher supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial stalements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial staterments are
designed lo provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner
similar la a private-sector business. '

The slalement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assels and iabilities,
with the difference belween the two reported as net assets. Over lime, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriarating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenue and expendilures are reperted in Lhis statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g.. uncollecled taxes and earned
but unused vacation and sick leave}.

Both the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a_significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-like aclivities). The governmental aclivities of the City
include general government, public safely, public works, health & human services. cullure &
recreation and conservation & developmsnt. The business-type activities include the Franklin
Water Utility and the City Sanitary Sewer fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City ilself (known as the
primary government) but also a legally separate Community Development Authority for which
the Cily is financially accountable, Financial information far this component unit is reported
separately from the financial information presented far the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial slalements can be found on Exhibils A & B of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounls that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objeclives. The
City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Cily can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, praprielary funds and fiduciary funds,

Governmenta! funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike government-wide financial stalements. governmental fund financial
statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-lerm financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmenlal funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for gavernmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental aclivities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may beller understand the long-term impact of
the govemment's near-term financing decisions. Bolh the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expendilures and changes in fund
balances provide a recongilialion ta facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains thiteen individual governmental funds. Informalion is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General and Debt Service
Funds, that are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining eleven governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund data for each of
these non-major governmental funds is provided in lhe form of combining statements later in
this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E & F of

this report. These stalements include a budgetary comparison statement of the General
Fund.
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The City adopts an annual apprapriated budgel for its General Fund. Debl Service Fund,
Library Fund, Capilal Qullay Fund, Equipment Revolving Fund, Sireet Improvement Fund,
Capilal tmprovement Fund, Sanilary Service Fund and the Frankiin Water Utility, A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all governmental funds
demonstrating compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to report the same funclions presented as
business-lype activities in the government-wide financiai statements. Proprietary funds
provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial slatements, only in
more delail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Franklin Water Utility, the Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Internal Service Fund.

The basic proprielary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H & I of this
repart.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties oulside the gavernment. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial slatement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
Cily's programs. The fiduciary funds maintained by the Cily are the Property Tax Agency
Fund, that recoids the lax roll and tax coliections for the City and other laxing jurisdictions,
and other agency funds lo record their activity,

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The noles to the financial statements can be found on pages 37 - 68 of this
report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents
combining slatemenls in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed
budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the
budget complemenling the statement included in the basic governmental fund financial
statements, and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately
following the notes to the financial statements. These schedules 1 to 11 can be found an
pages 69 - 85 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government'é

financial position. [n the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $110,370,675 and

$86,057,898 at the end of 2004 and 2003 respectively.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN NET ASSETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Governmenta!

Business-type

Aclivities Aclivilies Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Cumenl and
cther assels $ J7447.724 % 37726668 S 3159958 §  J091.53) £ 40,607.682 5 40818301
Capitat assels __35.200.666 28,518,497 81,402,130 66.424.389 116,602,796 94,542 885
Total assets 12,648.390 66,245,165 84.552.088 69,516,022 157,210,478 135,761,187
Long-term liabiitias 24.242.956 26,862,640 15,106 45,253 24,288 062 26,927,893
Current liabiliies 21,589,722 22,101,223 952.015 674,173 22,551,741 22775396
Tolal liabililies 45,832,678 48.903.863 1,007,125 719,426 46.839.803 49,703,289
Nal assels:
Invasted in capital
assats, natof
ralated debt 14,205,552 3.636,363 81,402,130 66,424,389 95607682 70.062.752
Restiicted 31,656,415 3.777,630 132,035 118,996 3.788,450 3,896,616
Unreslricted 8.953.745 9.845.309 2.020,798 2,253,221 10,974,543 12.098.530
Total netassets § 26815782 % 17261302 § B83.55496] S _68,706.596 $ 110370675 5 B86.057.898

The largest portion of the City's nel assels (approximately 87 and 81 percent, in 2004 and
2003 respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g., land, buildings. machinery,
and equipment); less any relaled debt used to acquire those assels that is still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these net
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital
assels is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that lhe resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used lo liquidate these liabilities.

Investment in capital assets accounted for $95,607,682 and $70,662,752 in 2004 and 2003
respectively of the year end net assets. The changes in capital assels were as follows:

Decrease
Capilal Asset in Capital Net
Additions Depreciation  Related Debt Increase
2004 § 24264433 § (2,604,524) § 3885020 $ 25544929
2003 9,100,712 {2.014,983) 3,334,225 10,419,954

The major City project contributing to this increase in 2004 was the Briarwood Sewer project
and in 2003 was the Drexel Avenue sewer and waler project. Infrastruclure contributed by
developers as part of developer's agreements contribuled approximately $6,210,000 in 2004
and $2,263,000 in 2003 to the capitalized infrastruclure through capital grants and
contributions of governmental activities and $7,352,000 in 2004 and $3,250.000 in 2003 lo
capitalized infrastruclure through capital grants and contributions for business-lype activities.
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In addition, during 2004 36,079,000 in capilalized infrastructure was acquired through capital
grants and contribulions for business-ype aclivities by reacquiring water utility infrastructure
at the expiration of a water service agreement with an adjaining community.

An additional partion of the City's net assels (approximately 3.4 percent and 4.5 percent, in
2004 and 2003 respaclively) represent resaurces that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. There were $3,788,450 and $3,896.616, respectively in net assels
that were restricted to specific purposes with the remaining balance of $10.974,543 and
$12,098,530, in 2004 and 2003 respectively in unrestricted nel assets may be used fo meet
the Cily's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Al the end of the current and prior fiscat years the Cily was able to report positive balances
in all three categories of net assels, as a government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-lype activities.

There was a 2004 decrease of $121,215 in restricted net assels reported in connection with
the governmental aclivities, The decrease was primarily due to the use of debt service net
assets to reduce outstanding debt (31,168,000), the use of ulility improvement funds to pay
for part of the Briarwood sewer improvement projecl (3756,000) offsel by the growth in
available Development funds ($1,766,000).

There was a 2003 decrease of $1,137,243 in restricted net assets reporied in connection with
the governrnenlal activities. The decrease was primarily due to the use of debt service nel
assets to reduce outstanding debt and the use of utility improvement funds to pay for part of
the 31% and Drexel sewer improvement project.

There was a 2004 decrease of $891,564 in unreslricled net assets reported in connection
with the governmental activilies. The major decrease was in the capital improvement fund
($678,000) reflecting expendilures on projects that had received funding in prior years.

There was a 2003 increase of 31,733,427 in unrestricted nel assels repored in connection
with the governmental activities, The major increase was due to growlh in the general fund
and the reimbursement from primarily utility improvement funds (restricted) for funds
advanced on sewer and water improvement projects.

Governmental activities. Governmental aclivilies in 2004 increased the City's net assets by
$9,554 410 accounting for 39 percent of the tolal growth in the net assels of the City.
Elements of this increase follow:

* [ncrease due to the reduction in Long term Debt of $4,000.307

« Increase in governmenlal activities capital assets net of depreciation of $6,682,169 -
* Net decrease from general fund activities of $915,651

« Net decrease from internal service activities of $97 434

« Net decrease frormn special assessment aclivilies of $114,581
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Governmental aclivities in 2003 increased the City's net assets by $5,598,901 accounting for
53 percent of the total growih in the net assets of the City, Elements of this increase follow:

* [ncrease due to the reduction in Long term Debt of $2,612,418
* [ncrease in governmental activilies capital assets net of depreciation of $2,583,418
* Netincrease from general fund activities of $949,063

= Net decrease from internal service activities of $338,800

= Net decrease from special assessment activities of $207,198

The details of governmental activities changes in net assets follow:

levenue
Yrogram ravenue;
Charges for services
Qperaling grants & contribulions
Capilal granis & contributions
3aneral ravenue;
Propenly laxes
Other taxes
Inlergovarnmental
Othar
Total revenue

Expenses:
Ganaral governmenl|
Public saloly
Public works
Heallh & Human sarvices
Cullura & Recroalion
Conservation & davalopmaonl
Interesi on long-term debt
Walgr
Sawer
Tolal expensas
ncrease in nal assels
befare iransfers
Translers
ncrajse in nat assals
\et assels - beginning
Vet assels - ending

City of Franklin Changes in Net Assets
Far the Year Ending December 31, 2004 and 2003

Gavernmaenlal
Aglivilies
2004 2003

Business-iypn
Aclivitios
2004 2003

Total
2004 2003

§ 4525971 § 4172471 § 4325814 § 4,607,111 $ 8,851,787 $ 5.779,582
1,686,800 1,623,047 - . 1,886,800 1,623,847
10,048,400 5485904 1343113 3,292,803 23,479,511 8,758,707
15,807,807 15,484,043 15,807,807 15,484,083
376,038 352,280 376,038 352,280
1,233,790 1,474,558 . - 1,233.750 1,474,558
657,246 794,764 84013 72,173 741.259 866,937
34,516,054 29.267.907 17.840.958 7.9rz2.087 52377012 37,339.964
2,535,843 2,560,386 2,535,943 2,560,386
13,154 438 12,244,323 11,054,488 12,344,323
4,152,452 .581,84G 4,152,452 3,581,846
518,850 574,101 538,850 574.163
1,428,499 1.290,260 1.428,499 1,280,360
384,702 445,732 384,702 445,732
1.253,065 1,388,325 . - 1.253,065 1,388.325

- - 2.572.320 2,528,709 2.572.320 2,528,709

- . 2.143916 202,336 2,141916 2,032,316
23,347,909 22,185,135 4,715,236 4.561.045 28.064,235 26,746,180
11,188,055 7,182,772 13,124,722 3,411,042 24. 312,777 10.593.814
{1.633,645) (1.583,871) 1.633.645 1.583.871 - -
9,554,410 5,598,901 14.758.367 4994913 24.312,777 10.593.814
17.261,302 11,662 401 68.796.555 63.801,683 86,057,898 75,464.084

3 26845712 S 11.2G1,302

3_81.554.963 § 68.796.596

§ 110370675 § 86.057.898.
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Business-type activities. in 2004, business-lype activities increased the City's net assets by
$14,758,367 ar 21.5 percent [ram the prior year. The key elements of this increase follow:

The income (loss) from operations excluding capital contributions and its related
depreciation expense - $(126.885). The goal of the business aclivities is lo provide these
services al a break even basis 1o minimize the cost to the users.

Ceveloper contributions of water infrastructure - $3,567,696 consisling of ten projects
Developer contributions of water infrastruclure - $6,078,824 from the water wutility
reacquiring infrastructure at the expiration of a water service agreement

Developer contributions of sewer infrastructure - $6,052,718 consisting of nine developer
projects, one other government entity project and one City projecil

Depreciation expense related to conlributed assels - $813,986

In 2003, business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $4,994,913 or 7.8 percent
from the prior year. The key elements of this increase foliow:

Long term debt elimination - $940,000

A reduction in waler rates by 17% at mid year reflecting that future capital needs would
now be provided through impact fees and that water revenue would no fonger be needed
for debt service obligations

Developer conlributions of water infrastructure - $2,742,062 consisting of thirteen
developer projects and three Cily projects

Developer contributions of sewer infrastructure - $2,554,558 consisting of ten developer
projects and one Cily project

The following graph compares the 2004 charges for services to the operating expenses for
water and sewer activities.

Qperating Revenue and Expensa - Businass-type Activities
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Water and Sewer expenses exceed revenue due to the current policy of only including
depreciation from City spending on Capital assels in the rate formula. The large amount of
new infrastructure that is being installed each year is lhe reason for this policy, When
maintenance and replacement costs begin lo increase this policy may need lo be
reevaluated.

As shown on the following chart, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and
contributions. investment earnings and miscellanecus income in addition to charges for
services (operating revenue).

Revenue by Source - Business-type Acfivities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earfier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demenstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of lhe City's governmental funds is o provide information
an near-term infllows, outllows, and balances of spendable resaurces. Such information is
useful in assessing the City's {inancing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $14,154,460, a decrease of $915,651 in comparison with the prior
year. Approximaltely 71 percent or $10,015,277 conslilutes unreserved fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is
reserved fo indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
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committed 1) to pay debl service ($126,566), 2} for utility improvement purposes ($765,805),
3) for development purposes ($2,743,066), 4) for library purposes ($208,274), and 5) for
emergency medical services, prepaid expenses, inventories, encumbrances, donations and
grants ($295,472).

Of the $10,015,277 unreserved fund balance, the use of $3,864,367 or approximately 39
percenl was commitled lo specific types of activities; i.e., $184,079 for special revenue fund
activilies, and $3.680,288 for capital project aclivities.

The General Fund is the chiel operating fund of the City. As of December 31, 2004, the total
fund balance of the general fund was $6,282,838 of which $6, 150,910 was unreserved. This
unreserved fund balance representls approximately 30 percent of 2005 total gemeral fund
expenditures.

The fund balance of the general fund increased by $176,598 in fiscal year 2004, The 2004
annual program budgel for the City's general fund idenlified the appropriation of $780,000 in
fund balance to reduce the impact of taxes levied and lo balance the budget. However, aclual
expenses were less than budgeted expenses by approximately 3 percent or $630,135 and
aclual revenue and other sources were more than budget revenue in the general fund by
$203,536 or approximately 1 percent. The increase in revenue can be allributed to increased
development activity resulting in mare permit and development review fees.

The Debt Service Fund has a lotal fund balance of $126,566, all of which is reserved for the
payment of debt service. The fund balance reflects a decrease of $1,445,472 due primarily to
exercising the call privilege on ene of the debt issues.

Proprietary fund. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in mare detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Utilily at the end of the year amounted to $1,049,458, a
gecrease of $89,255 from December 31, 2003. The growth in lotal net assets was
9.324.214.

Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of lhe year amounted to
$971,341, a decrease of $143,167 from December 31, 2003, The totai growth in {otal net
assets was $5,434.153.

The financial statements for the enterprise funds can be found on Exhibits G, H and | of this
report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively minor.
There were additional appropriations that came from olther departmenls or from the
cantingency budgeted.

As identified eadier, tolal aclual revenue and other sources exceeded the budgeted revenue
by $203,536. Building permits and engineering review fees exceeded their budgets due to
increased development activily. This gain was partially offset by inlerest income accounting
for most of the revenue increase.

Page 22



Aclual expenditures were less than budgeted expendilures by $630.135. This amount was
across all functions. The unused portion of the contingency budget of $501,791 was the main
portion of the under expenditures. The insurance and dispalch budget provided additional
underexpenditures reduced by overexpenditures in the fire and refuse collection budgets.

Because revenue increased and expenditures declined, the need to draw upon existing fund
balance was unnecessary. The combination of favorable variances in revenue ang
expenditures enabled the fund balance to increase $176,558.

Capital assets.

The City's investment in capilal assets for ils governmenlal and business lype activities as of
Decernber 31, 2004, amounts to $116.602,796 nel of accumulaled depreciation. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and
machinery and equipment.

issues that came due. The Cily maintains an "Aad" rating from Moady's for its general
obligation debt.

The Franklin Waler Utility has no debt outstanding. The Board of Water Commissioners
intention is to generally avoid debt by mainlaining and building cash and investments and
from tme to lime making improvements to its rate structure. The utility's plan is to make
future infrastructure improvements including water main replacement and new waler service
from currenl reserves and from City collected impact fees.

The City also has outslanding $20,030,000 of redevelopment revenue abligations that were
issued in order o evidence a loan from the City's Communily Development Authority (COA)
to the City. The CDA financed ils loan lo the City by issuing redevelopment [ease revenue
bonds. The proceeds of the redevelopment revenue obligations were used to finance the
City's Business Park. The obligations are being repaid from its inlerest in land sales and
property tax revenue generated by the City's TIF Dislrict No. 2. The CDA debt is not subject
to the City's statutory debt limit referred to in a preceding paragraph.

City of Franklin's Outstanding Debt (All purposes)

City's Investment in Capital Assets Govarnmental Business-lype
Govarnmental Business-lype Aclivilios Aclivilies Total
Aclivilies Aclivitias Tatal 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
2004 2602 2004 2003 2004 2003 General obligalion
bandsandnoles  § 24,800,000 $ 28.800.000 § -8 + § 24800000 $ 28,800,000
Land § 4777091 3 3482996 $ 426384 5 426384 S 5204375 5 3.909.360 Revenug bonds 20.030.800 22,270,000 - . 20,030.000 22,270.000
Buildings and
lmpm?;ements 21,180,277 20,730,208 2.345.953 1248.910 21516200 20.978.119 Tolal S.LLA0000 3 81870000 % - 2 - 324830000 § 51.070,000
Impravements othar
Ihan buildings 8.323.251 2,594,723 91,140,721 75.009.527 99,463,982 77,604.250 Additional information of the City's long-term debi can be found in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and
Machinery and Tables 7 — 1 in the statistical section of the report.
equipment 11,482,674 11.108.414 1.873.833 1,729.746 13.356.507 12.838.160
Total capilal assels 45,774,203 37,916,342 95,786,891 78,414,567 141561084 116330909 Ecenomic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets
Less Accumulaled .
dapracialian {10,573,537) (9.397.845) _(14,384.761) _ (11.990.178) __ {(24,958,208) _ (21,388,023) » The unemployment rale as of December 31, 2004 for the City was 3.5%, Milwaukee
) County which includes the City, is 5.2 percent. This compares with an unemployment rate
Capital assets nat of of 4.3 percent for the State of Wisconsin.
Caprecialion § 35200666 5 26518497 § 81402130 $§ 66424389 5 116.602796 $5_94.942.866 + The local tax rale change for operations for the current and prior two years were (1.28%),

The total increase in Lhe Cily's net investment in capital assets for the curren! fiscal year was
a tolal of $21,659,910 net of depreciation or a 23 percent increase.

For further details on capital asset activity. refer o Nole 1(D)5, Note 4(0) of the Notes to
Financial Statements and Schedules 8 - 8.2.

Long-term debt -

Al December 31, 2004, lhe City had general obligation note and bond issues oulstanding
totaling $24,800,000. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a

overnmental entily may issue to 5 percent of its total equalized valuation, The current debt
limitation for the City is $134,097,275,, The Cily's current outstanding general obligation debt
is 18% of the statutory debl limit. In the last 15 years the City has nol exceeded 36 percent
of the stalutory debt limit. No new debt was issued in 2004. The City paid off the balance of
the 1996 bond issue, in addition to making required principal payments on the remaining debt
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1.42% and 6.0%, respectively.

+ The lax levy increase for operations for the current and prior twa years were, $206,760,
$745,308 and $1,373,644, respectively,

+ The 2005 budgels require a local tax rate lhat increased 1.89% which together wilh
growth will resull in a tax levy increased of $1,085,68% or 6.9 percent.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all
those with an interest in the governments finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should ba -
addressed to lhe Direclor of Finance & Treasurer or the Director of Administration, 9229
West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wl 53132,

General information or more detailed financial and budget informalion relaling to the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, can be found at the Cily's websile, www.franklinwi.gov,
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Stalement of Net Assels
December 31, 2004

Exhibit A

Component
Primary Government Unit
Communily
Governmental Business-lype Development
Aclivilies Aclivilies Tolal Authority
ASSETS
Cash and invesimenls $ 15405550 § 1,591.919 § 16,997.469 § a70.686
Receivables
Accounis receivable 1,031,810 1,341,713 2,373,523 3,300
Taxes receivable 17,493,605 150.351 17,643,956 -
Special assessments receivable 3,239,485 - 3,239,485 -
Internal balances 56,060 {56,060) - .
Due from primary government . - . 2 925,386
Due from alher governments 183,219 183,219 -
Developer receivable . - - 237,830
Prepaid items 26,714 26,714 .
Inventories 11,281 - 11,281
Reslricted ¢cash and investmenis - 132,035 132,035 -
Capital assels (nel of accumulaled deprecialion)
Land 4,777,991 426,384 5,204,375 -
Buildings and improvements 17,363,501 1,796,652 19,160,153 -
Machinery and equipment 4,845,626 852,220 5,697,846
Improvemenls other than buildings 8,213,548 78,326,874 86,540,422 -
Tolal aszels $ 72,648,390 § 84562088 $157.210478 § 3,637.202
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable P 1615065 § 800,884 $ 2415949 % 157,139
Accrued liabilities 893,848 23,791 917,639 -
Due to other governments 59,844 102,368 162,212 -
Accrued interest 346,331 - 346,331 265,009
Special deposils 29,424 500 29,924 -
Unearned revenue 165,942 487 - 16,942 487 2.925,386
Noncurrent fiabilities:
Due within one year 1,702,723 34,476 1,737,199 2,315,000
Due in more than one year 24,242 956 45,106 24,288.062 17,715,000
Total liabilities 45,832,678 1,007,125 46,839.803 23,377.534
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
Investment in capital assels,
net of related debt 14,205,552 51,402,130 95,607,682 i
Reslricied for:
Utilily improvemenls 765,805 - 765.805
Development 2,743.066 - 2,743,066
Other purposes 147 544 132,035 279.579 -
Uarestricted 8,953,745 2.020.790 10,974,543 {19.840,332}
Total nel assets (liabilities} § 26815712 § 83554963 $110,370.675 § (19,840,332)

See accompanying notes lo Lhe financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Actlvities
Year Endad December 31, 2004

Exhibit E

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Government activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Interest on long term debt
Tatal governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Total Business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Unit:
Community Development Authority

Program Revenue

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

Operating Capital Community
Charges for  Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Development
Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions Activities Activitias Total Authority
$ 2,535,943 $ 185401 § - 5 $ (2,340542) § - {2,340,542) $ -
13,054,488 2,478,751 106,086 - (10,469,651) - (10,469,651) -
4,152,452 1,473,029 1,390,703 9,887,125 8,598,405 - 8,598,405 -
538,850 61,273 353,221 - {124,3586) - (124,356) -
1,428,499 201,129 36,790 161,275 (1,029,305) - (1,029,305) -
384,702 116,390 - - {268,312) - (268,312) -
1,253,085 - - - {1,253,065) - (1,253,085) -
23,347,999 4,525,973 1,886,800 10,048,400 (6,886,8286) - {6,886,826) -
2,572,320 2,810,730 - 9,514,855 - 9,753,265 9,753,265
2.143,916 1,515,084 - 3,816,276 - 3,287,444 3,287,444 -
4,716,236 4,325,814 - 13,431,131 - 13,040,709 13,040,709 -
$ 28,064,235 3 B,851,787 5 1886800 § 23479531 {6,886 ,826) 13,040,709 6,153,883
$ 1,205,938 $ - 3 - 3 - (1,205,939)
General revenue:;
Property taxes levied for general purposes 13,397,596 - 13,397,596 -
Property taxes levied for debt service 2,410,211 - 2,410,211 -
Property taxes tevied for TIF - - - 2,729,979
Other taxes 376,038 - 376,038 -
Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific pregrams 1,233,790 - 1,233,790 102,135
nvestment earnings 495 689 18,455 514,144 20,994
Miscellaneous revenue 161,557 65,558 227,115 2,969
Transfers (1,633,645) 1,633,645 - -
Total general revenue and transfers 16,441,236 1,717,658 18,158,894 2,856,077
Change in net assets 9,554,410 14,758,367 24312777 1,650,138
Net assets (liabilities) - beginning 17,261,302 68,796,556 86,057,898 (21,490,470)

Net assets (liabilities) - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CiTY OF FRANKLIN
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2004

Exhibil ©

Non Major Total
Dabt Govarnmental Govarnmental
Gonoral Servica Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 3 6586549 & 83,448 § 8,526,381 % 15.195,378
Raceivables
Acceounts receivable 781,361 43.118 73.826 858,305
Taxes receivable 12,329,203 2,823,520 2,340,882 17,493,605
Special assessments receivable - 2,191,269 1,048,216 1.239.485
Due from olher funds 17,113 . 102,000 119113
Bue from other governments 129,305 - 53,914 183,219
Prepaid items 17.647 - 9,067 26,714
Invenlones 11.281 - B 11,281
TOTAL ASSETS $ 19872459 $ 5.141,355 §  §2,154.286 $ 37.168.100
LIABILITIES AND FUNG BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounls payable 5 585,441 § - % 997,401 5§ 1,582,842
Accrued liabilities 511,617 - 22,701 534,348
Due to other funds 63,053 - . 63,053
Oue to othar governmenls 59,844 - 59,844
Specral deposits 26,180 - . 26,180
Deferred revenue 12,343,486 5,014,789 3,389,098 20,747,373
Tolal Liabilities 13,565,621 5.014.789 4,409.230 23,013.640
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Inventories and prepaid items 28,928 . . 28,928
Encumbrances 103,000 - 16,000 119,000
Subsequenl years expendilures - - 208,274 208,274
Subsequent years debl service - 126,566 « 126,566
Emergency medical services - . 11,261 11,261
Utility improvements - - 765,805 765,805
Development - - 2,743,066 2,743,066
Donatichs & grants - . 136,283 136,283
Unreserved reported in:
General Fung 6,180,910 - . 6,150,910
Special Revenue Funds - . 184,079 184 079
Capital Project Funds - 3,580,288 3,680,288
Total fund balances 6,282 839 126,566 7,745,056 14,154 460
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES § 19,872,459 § 5,141,355 $ 12154266 $ 37.168,100
Total fund balances of govemmental funds 5 14,154,460
Amaunts reported lor governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in govemment funds are nol (inancial resources and are not reported in the funds. 35,200,666
Internal service fund balance (52,290}
Other long-term assets that are nol available 1o pay for current period expenditures
and are deferred in the funds. 3,804 BBG
Long-term liahililies, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current period
and are nol reporied in the funds. (26,292.010)

Nat assets of gavarnmantai activities

See accompanying noles to the financial stalemenls,
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Exhibit O
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Stalement of Revenue, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Non Major Total
Dabt Governmental  Governmental
General Searvice Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes 311,711,134 5 2410211 § 2.082.500 $ 16,183,845
Intergovernmental revenue 2,641,983 - 423,526 3,065,509
Licenses and permits 1,258,457 - 1,258,457
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 397,169 - 397,169
Public charges for services 1,607,075 456,909 2,063,984
Special assessments - 500,409 3,287,518 3,787,927
Intergovernmental charges for services 575,009 - - 575.009
Investment earnings 177,420 183,037 134,733 495,190
Miscelaneous revenue 136,127 - 311,865 447,992
Tolal Revenue 18,504,374 3,550,566 6,220,142 28,275,082
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,262,025 - - 2,262,025
Public safely 12,102,357 - 6,750 12,109,107
Public works 3,580,392 - 3,580,392
Healih and human services 468,087 - 63,335 531,422
Culture, recreation and education 134,440 - 1,001,382 1,135,822
Conservalion and development 374,864 . 3.352 378,216
Capital autlay - 2,248,893 2,248,893
Debt service
Principat - 4 000.000 - 4,000,000
Interest - 1,311,211 1,318,211
Total Expendilures 18,822,165 5,311,211 3.323.71i2 27,557,088
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenue
Over {Under) Expenditures (417.791) (1,760,645) 2,896,430 717,994
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 634,462 337,199 2,301,978 3,273,639
Transfers out (40,073) {22.026) (4.845,185) (4.907,284)
Net change in fund balances 176,598 (1,445.472) 353,223 (915,651)
Fund balances - beginning 6,106,240 1,572,038 7,301,833 15070411
Fund bailances - ending $§ 6282838 % 126566 $ 7.745056 § 14,154,460

See accompanying notes o the financial statements,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue

Exhihit §

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2004

Governmental funds report capital oullays as expendilures.
However in the slatement of aclivilies, the cost of these assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reporled
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
oullays (31,709,556} exceeded deprecialion {$1,404,394)
in the current period. plus gain on disposal ($5,808)

Contribuled capital assels are reporied as revenues in the

statement of aclivilies

The issyance of long-term debt ( e.g. nales, ieases) provides
current financial resources 1o governmentlal funds, while
the repayment of the principal on long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of government funds. Neilher
transaclion, however, has any effecl an net assets. This
amaunl is the net effect of differences in the trealment

of long lerm debt.

Some expenses reparled in the stalement of aclivities do nol
require lhe use of current financial resources and therefare, are
not reported as expendilures in the government funds

Revenue in the statement of aclivilies nol providing current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the funds

Revenue in the governmenl funds (hat provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as

revenue in the statement of aclivilies

Internal service fund change in net assets

Net change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes lo the linangial statements,

Net change in fund balances - tolal governmental funds

Amounts reperted for governmeniat aclivities in the slalemenl
of aclivities (page 25) are different because:
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310,970

6,371,198

4,000,000

307

1,060,383

{1.175,364)

(97.434)

§ 9554410



CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
8udget and Actual (on a Budgetary basis}
Year Ended December 31, 2004

Exhibit F

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permils
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellanecus revenue
Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and human services

Culture and recreation

Conservalion and development
Tolal Expendilures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over [Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES {USES)
Transfers in
Transfers aut

Net change in fund balance - budgeiary basis

Adjustrments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2004 encumbrances

MNet change in fund balance - generally
accepted accounting principies basis

Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

See accompanying nales lo the financial statements.

Variance with

final budget -

QOriginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 12341900 § 12.341,900 % 12345596 § 3,695
2.658.900 2,658,900 2,641,983 {16.917)
943,150 843,150 1,258,457 315,307
430,000 450,000 397,169 (52,831)
1.440,650 1,441,650 1.807,075 165,425
623,000 623,000 575,000 {47,991}
342,500 342,500 177,420 {165,080}
134,200 134,200 136,127 1,927
18,934,300 18,935,300 19,138,836 203,536
2,945,257 2.918.057 2,266,525 651,532
11,989,474 12,015,474 12,102,357 (85,883)
3,579,911 3,579,911 3,580,392 {481)
499,368 499,368 468,087 31,281
142,952 144,152 134,440 9,712
497,338 497,338 473,364 23,974
19,654,300 19,655,300 19,025,165 630,135
(720,000} {720.000) 113,671 833,671
(60.000) (60.000) (40.073) 19,927
(780,000) (780,000) 73,598 853,598
103.000 103,000 103.000 -
{677,000 (G77.000) 176.598 853,598
6.106.240 6,106.240 6,106,240 -
5 5429240 § 5420240 $ 6,282,838 § 853.598’

Page 30

[THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2004
(with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Exhibit G

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities »
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and investments 3 746633 § 761,008 % 845286 § 954083 § 1,591,919 § 209,172
Receivables:
Accounts receivable 862,644 623,547 449 069 434 928 1,341,713 133,505
Taxes receivable 95,448 68,895 54,903 34,366 150,351 -
Due from other funds 113,905 163,865 53,977 51,901 167,882 .
Total current assets 1,848,630 1,617,316 1,403,235 1,475,278 3,251,865 342 677
Noncurrent assets,
Restricted cash and investments - - 132,035 118,086 132,035 -
Total restricted assets - - 132,035 118,986 132,035
Capital assets:
Land 115,465 115,465 310,919 310,919 426,384 -
Buildings and improvements 724,880 724,880 1,621,073 524,030 2,345,953
improvements other than buildings 43,335,501 32,124,982 47,805,220 42 884,545 91,140,721 -
Machinery and equipment 1,360,057 1,262,467 513,776 467,279 1,873,833 -
Less accumulated depreciation (6,856,617) (4,961,978) (7,528,144) (7,028,200)  (14,384,761) -
Total capital assets { net of
accumulated depreciation) 38,679,286 29,265,816 42,722,844 37,158,573 81,402,130
Total noncurrent assets 38,679,286 29,265,816 42,854 879 37,277,559 81,534,165 -
Total assets $ 40,527,916 § 30,883,132 § 44,258,114 § 38,752,837 § 84,786,030 § 342,677
Continued
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CALIHLIL A

{concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2004
(with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2003}
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds ‘Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities: :
Accounts payable $ 483034 § 351,701 § 2317850 % 259411 § B00BB4 § 32,223
Accrued liabilities 391 11,237 23,400 24,624 23,791 359,500
Due to other governments 102,368 - - - 102,368 -
Due to other funds 173,089 79,338 50,853 40,609 223,942 -
Special deposits 500 200 - - 500 3,244
Current portion of compensated absences 17,238 13,500 17,238 13,600 34 4786 -
Total current liabilities 776,620 455,976 408,341 338,144 1,185,961 394,667
Non-current liabilities;
Accrued compensated absences 22,553 22,627 22,553 22,626 45,106 -
Total non-current liabilities 22,553 22,627 22,553 22,626 45,106
Total liahilities 709,173 478,603 431,894 360,770 1,231,067 394,967
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 38,679,286 29,_265,816 42,722 844 37,158,573 81,402,130 -
Restricted for:
Sewer equipment replacement - - 132,035 118,986 132,035 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,049,457 1,138,713 971,341 1,114,508 2,020,798 (52,290)
Total net assets $ 39,728,743 § 30,404,529 § 43,826,220 § 38,392,067 §$83,554,963 § (52,290}

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2004
{with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Watar Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Utility Utility Sewer Sawer Year Intarnal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Pricr Year Totals Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUE
Metered sales
Residential $ 1,251,511 § 1,421,365 3 809,607 500,788 2,161,118 % -
Commercial 619,272 664,720 351,574 355,808 970,846 -
Public authority 185,966 224,901 96,502 104,696 292,468 -
Industrial 195,477 177,858 143,149 138,067 338,626 -
Total Metered Sales 2,262,226 2,488,845 1,500,832 1,499,357 3,763,058 -

Group health & dentai charges - - - - - 2,365,903

Public fire protection service 451,488 510,247 - - 451,488 -

Private fire protection service 65,975 79,030 - - 65,975

Forfeited discounts, penalties and other 31,041 20,002 14,252 9,630 45,293 -
Total Operating revenue 2,810,730 3,098,124 1,515,084 1,508,987 4,325,814 2,365,903

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of sales and services 1,589,789 1,617,113 1,439,584 1,385,069 3,029,373 2,468,091

Depreciation 578,708 569,940 541,105 478,593 1,119,813 -

Administration 403,823 323,815 163,227 168,674 567,050 -

Total operating expenses 2,572,320 2,510,868 2,143,916 2,032,336 4,716,236 2,468,091
Operating income (loss) 238,410 987,256 {628,832) (523,349) (380,422) {102,188)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE {(EXPENSES)

Investment earnings ‘ 8,892 6,949 9,563 11,450 18,455 4,754

Sundry 60,203 43,108 5,355 10,666 65,558 -

(nterest expense {13,024) - - -

Amortization of debt discount - (4,817 - - - -
Total non-operating revenue {expenses) 69,085 32,216 14918 22,116 84,013 4,754
Income {loss) before capital contributions

and transfers 307,505 619,472 (613,914) (501,233) (306,409) (97,434)

Capital Contributions 9,514,855 1,454,149 3,916,276 1,838,654 13,431,131 -

Transfers In 131,665 1,328,759 2,136,442 717,812 2,268,107 -

Transfers out (629 811) (455,715) (4.651) (6,785) (634,462) -
Change in net assets 6,324,214 2,946,665 5,434,153 2,048 248 14,758,367 (97,434)

Net assets - beginning 30,404,529 27,457,864 38,392,067 36,343,819 68,796,596 45 144

Net assets - ending $ 39,728,743 § 30,404,529 $ 43,826,220 § 38,392,067 $83,554,9863 & (52,290)

See accompanying noles to the financial statemenls.



CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Cash Fiows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2004
(with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Exhibit |

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts for interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash flows provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer out - paid for tax equivalent
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Interest paid
Principal paid on long-term debt
Net cash flows used in capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
nvestment earnings

Net increase {decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - Ending

Cash and Investments - Unrestricted
Cash and Investments - Restricted

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Business-type Activities « Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
$ 2,366,816 % 2,980,870 § 1,485,761 § 1,443,010 $ 3,852,577 § 2,309,508
217,856 232,866 - - 217,856 -
(1,181,532) (1,726,328) (1,116,238) (1,134,981) (2,297,770) (2,405,783}
(362,251) (330,965) {(347,615) (298,815) {709,868) -
(79,300) (77,400) {79,300) (77,400) {158,600)
961,589 1,079,043 {57,302) (68,1886) 804,197 (96,275)
{633,039) (460,475) {1,423) (2,025) (634,462) -
{351,818) (174,186) (46,497) {43,724) (398,315) -
- (26,048) - - - -
- (940,00_0) - - - -
(351,818)  (1,140,234) {46,497) (43,724) {398,315) -
8,892 6,951 9,564 11,450 18,456 4,754
(14,376) (514,715) (95,748) (102,485) (110,124) {91,521)
761,009 1,275,724 1,073,069 1,175,554 1,834,078 300,693
S 746,633 § 761,009 § 977,321 § 1,073,069 § 1,723,954 § 209,172
$ 746633 § 761,009 § 845,286 954,083 $1591919 % 209,172
- - 132,035 118,986 132,035 -
$ 746633 § 761,009 § 877,321 § 1,073,069 § 1723954 § 209,172
Continued



Exnibit

(concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2004
{with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2003)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities »
Utility Utility Sewer Sewer Year Internal
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (foss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 238410 § 587,256 § (628,832} § (523,349} § (390,422) §  (102,188)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation 578,708 569,940 541,105 478,593 1,119,813 -
Depreciation allocated to other accounts 6,161 6,241 (6,161} - - -
Other non operating income 63,431 47,868 2,127 5,906 65,558 -
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (269,087) 61,504 (14,141) (98,182) (283,238) (66,395)
Taxes receivable (26,553) (20,537) 26,299 (47,090) -
Prepaid expense - 2,448 - - .
Due from other funds 49,960 (75,644) (2,078) 32,310 47,884
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 131,333 (118,758) 58,439 (22,921) 189,772 (2,692)
Accrued liabilities (10,846) 10,845 (1,224) 11,863 (12,070) 65,000
Due to other governments 102,368 - - - 102,368 -
Due to other funds 94,051 {15,037) 10,244 18,216 104,285 -
Customer Deposits - - - . - -
Compensated Absences 3,663 2,380 3,664 2,379 7,327 -
Total Adjustments 723,179 491,787 571,440 455,163 1,294,619 5,013
Net cash flows provided by {used in)
operating activities $ 961,589 § 1,079,043 § (57,392} & (68,186) $§ 904,197 § (96,275)
Noncash Capital Activities:
Cost of Utility plant installed and/or financed
by external parties $ 9514855 § 1,413,303 § 3,916,276 § 1,836,946 § 13,431,131 §

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.




CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assels
Flduciary Funds
December 31, 2004

Exhihit J

ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments

Receivables
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to component unit
Due other governments
Special deposits

Total liabilities

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to the financial stalements.

Agency
Funds

$ 39,590,355

13,057,893
41,168

52,689,416

131.036
2,925,386
49,622 044

10,950

52,689,416

[THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CiTY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's more significant accounling policies
is presenled to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other dala in
this report. These policies, as presented. should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounling policies ol the City conform to
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America as applicable to
governmental units. A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the Cily of Franklin. The reparting entily for lhe
Cily consists of {a) the primary government, {b) organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (c) olher organizalions for which the nalure
and significance of their relationship with the primary governmenl are such lhal their
exclusion would cause ihe reporting entity’s financial slatemenls to be misleading or
incomplele, A legally separate organization should be reperted as a companent unit il
the elecled officials of the primary government are financially accountable to the
arganization. The primary governmenl is f{inancially accountable il it appoints a veling
majority of the organization’s governing body and {1} it is able to impose ils will on that
organization or {2) there is a patential for the organization to pravide specific linancial
benelits to or burdens on the primary governmen!, The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organization Is f{iscally dependent on the primary
government. A legally separate, lax exempi organization should be reported as a
compenent unil of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are mei (1} the
economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entlirely or almost
enliely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its compoanent unils, or its
constituents; (2) the primary governmenl is enlitied to, or has the abilily to olherwise
access, a mafority of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization; (3) lhe economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the speciflic primary gaovernment, or its compenent unils, is entitled 10. or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary governmentl. Each discretely
presented companent unil is reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial stalements (see ncte below for description} to emphasize thal it is legally
separate from the Cily.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Communily Development Authority of the Cily of Franklin {Authority) is included in
the government-wide financial slalements as a component unit. The Authorily is a legally
separate organization. The Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council, As a component unit, the Authorily's
financial statements are presented as a discrele column in the City's financial
statements. The City is finangially accountable for the Autherily due to the municipal
lease revenue obligation of the City thal supports lhe lease revenue bonds issued by Lhe
Authorilty. Separate financial statements are not published for {he Authority. The
Aulhorily follows lhe accounting policies of the City.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statemen! of nel assets and slalemenl of activilies display information about lhe
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporling enlity except lor
fiduciary funds, The slalements distinguish belween governmenlal and business lype
aclivilies.  Governmental  aclivities generally are financed through laxes,
intergovernmental revenue and ather nonexchange revenue. Business-type activilies are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged lo exiernal parties far goods and services
provided. The primary governmant is reported separately from a legally separate
component unii that the primary government is financially accountable.

The slalement of aclivilies demonstrales the degree thal direcl expenses al a given
segment or function are offsel by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific lunclion or segment. The Cily dces not allocale indirect
expenses lo funclions in the statement of aclivilies.

Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
direclly benelil [rom goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and conlributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other ilems not
ingluded among program revenue are reporled as general revenue. Internally dedicated
resources are reporled as general revenue rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statemenls of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund
cansidered lo be a separale accounting enlity. Each fund is accounled for by providing a
separale sel of self-balancing accounts that conslilute ils assels, liabililies, nel
assels/fiund equity, revenue and expendituresfexpenses.

Separale linanciat stalements are provided for governmenlal funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds even though the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmenl funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reportled as separale columns in the fund financial stalements,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLIGIES (continued}

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

B. GCOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and
preprietary fund slalemenls. An emphasis is placed on majer funds within the
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major il il is the primary
operating (und of the city or meels the following crileria:

a. Tolal assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures of thal individual governmentai
or propriety fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of
that category or type.

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or propriety fund that met
the 10 percent lest is al least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all
governmenial and propriety funds combined.

c. In addition, any other governmenlal or propriety (und ihat the cily believes is
imporlant to flinancial stalement users may be reporled as a major fund.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — accounls for the Cily's primary operaling aclivities. it is used to account
for all financial resources exceplt those required 1o be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund -~ accounis for resource accumulation from taxes, special
assessmenls and olher revenue along with payments made for principal and inleresl!
on long-lerm debt other than CDA ar proprielary {fund debt

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Utility Fund - accounts for operations of providing water services to Cily residents
and bills for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund - accounls for the operations of providing sanilary sewer services
for Cily residents and bills for those services,

Enterprise funds are used lo account for operations (a) thal are financed and cperaled in
a manner similar ta private business - where the inlent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to lhe general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or
(b) where lhe governing bady has decided thal periodic delermination of revenue earned,
expenses incurred, and/or nel income fs appropriate for capital maintenance, public
poalicy, managemenl cantrol, accountability or other purposes.
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B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
In addition the Cily reporis:
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other
than major capilal projects) that are legally restricted lo expenditures for specified
purposes. The [unds include Library, Economic Development, Donations, Civic
Celebrations and Granis.

Capilal Projects Funds - account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase
of equipment, sireel replacement, acquisilion of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipmeni Replacement,
Capita! Improvemnenl, Street Improvement, Ulility Improvement and Development.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service funds - lo account for the payment of group health and dental charges
for services and stop loss insurance charges by the City and the billing of
departments or agencies of the City on a cosl-reimbursement basis for the services
received.

Agency funds — lo accound for assels held by the Cily in a lrustee capacily or as an
agen| [or individuals, privale organizalions and /or governmental unils. The agency
{unds include a properly tax fund and other agency funds.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACGCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The governmentl-wide stalemenl of net assels and slatement of activities are reported
using the gconomic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounling, revenue is recognized when earned and
expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.
Revenue, expendilures, gains, losses, assels and liabilities resulling from exchange and
exchange-like transaclions are recognized when the exchange lakes place. Properly
laxes are recognized as revenue in lhe year that they are levied.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT AGCQUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUsS, BIASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION {continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements {Continued)

Taxes receivable for lhe following year are recorded as receivables and deferred
revenue. Grants and similar ilerns are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the pravider are mei. Special assessments are recorded as
revenue when earned. Unbilled recelvables are recorded as revenue when services are
performed.

The business-lype aclivilies follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Slandards Board and have elecled not o follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronguncements issued alter November 30, 1989.

As a general rule, the effect of inlerfund activity has been eliminated from lhe
governmeni-wide financial statements. Exceptions to lhis general rule are charges
between the City's water utility and sanitary sewer fund and various other functions of the
government, Eliminalion of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenue reported (or the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial slalements are reperted using the currenl resources
measuremen! focus and lhe modilied accrual basis of accounting, Revenue is recorded
when it is bolh measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafler to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the city considers revenue lo be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current [iscal period. Expendilures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, excepl for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims,
judgements, compensaled absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a
fund liabilily when expected ta be paid with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes are recorded in lhe year levied as receivable and deferred revenue and
are recognized as revenue in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are
provided.

Inlergovernmental aids and granls are recognized as revenue in the pericd the city is
enliied lo the resources and the amounls are available. Amounts owed to {he Cily thatl
are nol available are recorded as receivables and deferred revenue. Amounts received
prior lo lhe entitlemenl period are recorded as deflerred revenue.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conlinued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION {conlinued)

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

Special assessments levied for benefits to properly owners for inslallation of sanitary
sewers, waler mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when lhey
become measurable and available. Annual installments due in future years are recorded
as receivables and deferred revenue.

Revenue susceplible lo accrual include properly laxes, room taxes, public charges for
services, permils and inlerast. Olher general revenue such as fines and forfeilures,
licenses and miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received oar when measurable
and available under the crileria mentioned above,

Deferred revenue is reported on the governmenlal funds balance sheel. Deferred
revenue arises from taxes levied in the currenl year that are for subsequenl years
aperations. For governmenltal funds financial sltalements deferred revenue arises where
paleniial revenue does nol meel both the "measurable” and “available™ criteria [or
recogaition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are
received belore lhe city has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received
priar lo the incurrence of qualifying expendilures. In subseguenl periods, when baoth
revenue recognition criteria are met or when the cily has a legal claim to the resources.
the liabifity for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reporled using the economic rescurces
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, Agency fund financia!
statemenlis are reported using the accrual basis of accounling.

The Enlerprise funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmenlal Accounling
Standards Board and have elecled not lo follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued afler November 30, 1989. Proprietary funds dislinguish
operating revenue and expenses from non-operaling ilems. Operaling revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in conneclion
with the proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal operating revenue of the
waler and sanitary sewer funds are charges to cuslomers for sales and services
provided. The rates billed in lhe water ulilily are approved by the Public Service
Commission. Sanitary sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based
on the charges received from the Milwaukee Melropolitan Sewage Dislrict.

Operaling expenses for Proprietary funds include lhe cost of sales and services,

administration and depreciation on capital assels. Revenue and expenses nol meeting
{his definition are reporled as non-operaling revenue and expenses,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conlinued)

GC. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION {(centinued)

All Financ¢lal Statements

The preparation of financial stalemenis in conformily with generally accepled accounting
principles requires managemen! lo make estimates and assumptions that affect reporled
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and liabilities at the
date of the financial stalements and reporled amounis of revenue and expendilures/
expenses during the reporling period. Actual resulls coutd vary lrom lhose estimales.

D. AsSSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuUITY
1, Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the stalemenl ol cash flows, the cily considers all highly liquid
investments wilh an initial maturity of three months or iess lo be cash equivalenls.

Investment of cily funds are restricled by slale stalules. Investmenis are limited to:

1. Time deposils in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing
in three years or less.

2. Bonds or securities issued or guaranleed as lo principal and interest by the
federal government, or by a commission, board or other insicumentality of the
federal government.

3. Bonds or securilies of any counly, cily, drainage district. technical college disirict,
local exposition district, local professional baseball park district, local professional
football stadium district, cullural arts district, village, town or school district of {he
Slale of Wiscensin and Universily of Wiscensin Hospitals and Clinics Autharity.

4. The Local Governmenl Investiment Pool.

5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest raling category assigned of a nationally recognized raling agency.

6. Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trusl
subject to various conditiens and investment oplions.

7. Repurchase agreemenls wilh public depositaries, with certain conditions.

Investmenls are staled at fair value. which is the amount at which an invesiment could be
exchanged in a current lransaclion belween willing parties, Fair values are based on
quoted markel prices. Adjustments necessary lo record investmenls at fair value are
recorded in lhe operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.
Investment income on commingled investments of municipal accounting funds is
allocaled based on average investment balances.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0. AsSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {conlinued)
1. Deposits and Investments (continued)

The Wiscansin Local Gavernment Investment Pool (LGIP) is pari of the State Investment
Fund (SIF}, and is managed by the Slale of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not
regislered wilh the Securilies and Exchange Commission, bul operates under the
statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapler 25. The SIF reporls the fair value of ils
underlying assets annually, Parlicipants in the LGIP have lhe right to withdraw funds in
tolal on one day's nolice. At December 31, 2004. the fair value of the Cily's share of
LGIP's asselts was subslantially equal to the amount reporled in these slalemenls.

2. Receivables

Praperty taxes are lavied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1.
In addition lo property taxes for the municipalily, taxes are collecled for and remitted lo
the State government, County governrent, local school districls, iechnical college district
and metropolitan sewerage dislricl. Taxes for all Slate and other local governmental
units billed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and
due to other taxing unils on the accompanying agency fund balance sheel.

Property tax calendar — 2004 tax roll:

Lien dale and levy date December 2004
Tax bills mailed December 2004
Payment in full, or January 31, 2005
First installment due January 31, 2005
Second installment due March 31, 2005
Third installmen! due May 31, 2005
Personal properly taxes in full January 31, 2005
Final tax selllement with County Augusl 15, 2005
Tax deed by County — 2004

Delinquent real estate taxes October 2007

Accounts receivable have been shown nel ol an allowance for uncalleclible accounts.
Delinquent real eslate laxes as of July 31 are paid in full by the counly, which assumes
the colleclion thereof. No provision for uncolleclible accounts receivable has been made
far the city and ulility because of their right by law 1o place delinquent bills on the tax roll.

During the course of operalions, iransaclions occur between individual funds thal may
result in amounts owed belween funds. Sharl-lerm interfund loans are reporied as “due
lo and from other funds”. Long term inlerfund loans {non-current portion) are reparted as
“advances from and lo other funds”. Interfund receivables and payables between funds
within governmental aclivilies are eliminaled in the stalement of nel assets. Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activilies and the proprietary activilies
are reported in the government-wide financial stalemenis as “internal balancas”.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued}
2. Receivables {conlinued)

In the gavernmental fund financial slatementls, advances to ather funds are offset equally
by a fund balance reserve accounl which indicates thal they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefare, are not available for appropriation.

3. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Governmenlal fund inventory items, except {uel inventory, are charged lo expendilures
when purchased. The fuel inventory is recorded al cost on a first in first out basis using
the consumption method of accounting. Year end inventory was not significant.
Proprietary fund inventeries are generally used for construclion and for aperalion and
mainlenance work. They are not lor sale. Material and supplies on hand at year end are
considered immaterial,

Certain payments lo vendors reflect costs applicable lo future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in bath government-wide and fund financial statementls.

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presenled as restricted assets. Such segregation is
required by bond agreemenls and alher external parties. Current liabilities payable rom
reslricted assels are so classified. The excess of restricted assels over current liabilities
will be used first for retiremenl of relaled long-term debt. The remainder, if generated
from earnings, is shown as restricted net assels.

5. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

In the governmenl-wide financial statements. capilal assets are accounled lor as assels,
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than
$1,000 for general capilal assels and 510,000 for infrastructure assels and an eslimaled
useful life of three years or more. All capilal assels are recorded at historical cost or al
estimated historical cost if actual amounts are not available,

Donaled capital assets are recorded al their eslimated fair value at the date of donation,
Prior to January 2003, infraslructure assels of governmental funds were not capitalized,
Upon implementing GASB 34 governmental units are required 1o account for afl capital

assets, including infrastructure, in the government-wide stalements prospectivety from
the date of implementation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (continued)
5. Capital Assets (continued)
Government-Wide Statements (continued)

Retroactive reporling of all major general infrastruclure assels is enceuraged but not
required until January 1, 2007 when GASB 34 requires the City to relroaclively report all
major general infrastructure assets acquired singe January 1, 1980, For the year ended
December 31, 2004, the Cily has not retroactively reported all nelwork infrastruclure
acquired by ils governmental fund types.

Additions to and replacemenls of capilal assels of business-lype activilies are recorded
at original cosl, which includes malerial, labor, overhead, and an aflowance for the cost
of funds used during construction when significant, For lax-exempt debl, the amocunt of
interest capitalized equals the interest expense incurred during conslruction nelted
againsl any interest from temporary investment of borrowed fund proceeds, No net
inlerest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and bellerments
relating to relirement units is added te planl accounts. The cosl of properly replaced,
retired or otherwise disposed of, is deducled from plant accounls and, generally,
together with removal cosls less salvage, is charged lo accumulaled deprecialion.

Deprecialion of all exhauslible capital assels is recorded as an allocaled expense in the
statement of activilies, with accumwlaled deprecialion reflected in the statement of nel
assels. Depreciation is provided over lhe assels’ estimated useful lives using the
siraight-line method of depreciation. The range of useful lives by asset type of follows;

Buildings and improvemants 20-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 5-30 Years
Waler and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-90 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financiafl slatements, capilal assels used in governmental fund cperalions are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of lhe governmental fund upoen acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprictary fund operations are accounted for the same in the
government-wide statemenls.

6. Other Assets

In governmenlal funds. debt issuance cosls are recognized as expendilures in the
current period. For lhe government-wide and proprietary fund lype financial statements,
debl issuance costs are deferred and amorlized over lhe lerm of the debl issue,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2G04

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY {continued)
7. Compensated Absences

Under lerms of employment, employees may earn compensatory lime and are granled
sick leave, severance pay and vacalions in varying amounts. Only benefils considered o
be vesled are disclosed in these statements.

All vested compensalory time, sick leave, severance pay and vacalion pay are accrued
when incurred in lhe governmenl-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmenial funds only if they
have matured, for example, as a resull of employee resignations or retiremenls and are
payable with expendable available resources.

Payments for vesled compensalory lime, sick leave, severance pay and vacation pay will
be made at rates in eflect when lhe benefils are used. Accumulated vested
compensatary time, sick leave, severance pay and vacation pay liabilities are determined
on the baslis of current salary rales and include salary related payments.

The city also provides pastemploymen! heallh and dental care benefits for all eligible
employees. Eligibility and benelit levels are based on contractual agreements with
employee groups, Cily ordinances and employee benefil poticies. Some employees may
ieave thetr accumulaled severance (o pay for their porlion of heallh care pcemiums. The
City contribulion lo postretirement health care is 75% of the year of retirement premium
cost with the employee paying any balance due plus the cosl of any dental benefit
selecled. The Cily’s pottion of heallh care cost is recognized as expenditure in the
period premiums are paid. Funding for those cosls is provided out of the current
aperating budgel of the cilty. The contributions are financed on a pay as you go basis.

8. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Deht

All long-lerm obligations lo be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reporled as liabilities in the governmenl-wide statements. The long-term obligations
consist primarily of notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term Obligations for goevernmental funds are not reporled as liabilities in the fund
financial stalements. The face value of debt (plus any premium) is reported as other
financing sources and payments of principal and inlerest are reported as expenditures.
The proprietary fund accounting is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IBRB) for the
benelit of privale business enterprises. IDRB's are secured by morigages or revenue
agreements on associated projecls and do not conslitute indebledness of the cily.
Accordingly. bonds are nol reported as liabilities in the financial stalements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gecembicr 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. AssETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY {continued)

9. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgmenis are recorded as liabililies if ail lhe conditions of Governmenlal
Accounting Slandards Board pronouncements are met, Claims and judgments thal would
normally be liquidaled with expendable available financial resources are recorded during
the year as expenditures in the government funds. If they are not lo be liquidatled wilh
expendable available financial resources, ne liabilily is recagnized in governmentat fund
financial slatements. The related expenditure is recognized when the liability is
liquidated. Claims and judgmenls are recorded in the government-wide stalements and
proprietary funds as expenses when the relaled liabilities are incurred. There were no
significant claims or judgments at year end,

10. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equily is classilied as nel assets and displayed in three componenis:

a. fnvested in capital assets, nel of relaled debl — Consisis of capital assets including
reslricted capilal assels. ne! of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
altributable to the acquisilion. construction er improvement of those assels.

b. Reslricled net assets — Consists of net assels with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as credilors, granlors, contributors or laws ar
regulations of other governmenis or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation,

c. Unrestricted net assels — All other net assets lthat do nol meet the definition of
“restricled” or “invaested in capilal assets, net of related debl”.

When bolh restricled and unreslricled resources are available for use, it is the cily's
policy to use reslricted resources first, then unrestricled resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classilied as fund balance. Fund balance Is furlher classified
as reserved and unieserved. Unreserved fund balance includes funds sel aside by
managemen! for specific uses, which are labeled “designaled”. The balance of
unreserved fund balance is labeled “undesignated”, which indicales it is available for
appraprialion. Proprietary fund equily is classified the same as in the government-wide
stalements.
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CITY QF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Oecember 31, 2004

D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {continued)
11. Comparative datalreclassifications

The basic financial statements include comparaltive data for the priar year for individual
enlerprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
the changes in financial position and operations of these funds. This comparative data is
not at the level of detail required for a presentalion in conformity wilh general accepted
accounling principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the City's financial statemenis for the year ended December 31, 2003, from which lhe
data was derived.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION QF GOVERNMENT-WIDE ANG FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanalion of Certain differences between the Governmenlal Fund Balance Sheet
and the Stalement of Net Assels

The governmantat fund balance sheel includes a reconciliation belween fund balance -
tolal governmental funds and nel assels — governmental activilies as reporied in the
government-wide slatement of net assels. One element of that reconciliation explains
thal “other long term assets thal are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therelore are deferred in the funds”. The details of this difference are as lollows:

Special Assessments £3.804 886

Capital Assels used in government funds are not linancial resources and, therefore, ara
not reparted in the funds.

Land $4.777.991
Buildings 21,190,277
Machinery and Equipment 11,482,674
Infraslructure 8,323,261
Less: Accumulated depreciation (10,573,537)
Adjustment for Capital assels $35.200.66%

Long-term liabililies applicable to the cily’s governmental aclivilies are not due and
payable in lhe current period, and accordingly, are not reporled as fund liabilities.
inlerest on long-lerm debl is not accrued in governmental funds, bul rather is recognized
as an expendilure when due. All liabilities-both current and long-term-are reported in the
slatement of net assels.

Bonds and noles payable $24.800,000

Compensated absences 1,145,679

Accrued Interest 346,331

Combined Adjustment for long-lerm liabilities $26,292.010
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B. Explanalion of Cerlain differences belween the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide
Statement of Aclivities

The governmental fund statement of revenue, expendilures and changes in fund
balances includes a reconcilialion between nel changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in
the government wide statement of aclivities. One element of {hat reconciliation explains
that ‘revenue in the stalemenl of activities thal do not provide current linancial resaurces
are not reported as revenue in the funds”. The details of this difference are as (ollows:

Special assessmenl levies $1.060.383

Another element of thal reconciliaticn slates that “lhe issuance of long-term debt (e.g.,
bonds, noles) provides current financial resources lo gavernmental fund, while the
repayment of the principal of leng-term debl consumes the curren! financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effecl on nel assels". The
details of this dilference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:

Issuance af general obligatlion bends and noles  $ -
Principal repayments:

General obligation dabt 4,000,000

Net adjustment to decrease net changes
In fund balances — total governmental
Funds to arrive at changes in nel
Assels of governmental activities $4.000,000

Another element of that reconcilialion states thal “some expenses reported in the
slatement of activities do nol require the use of current financial resources and,
lherefore, are nol reported as expenditures in governmental funds™. The delails of this
difference are as follows:

Compensaled absences 357,829
Accrued interes! (58,146)

Nel adjustmenls lo increase net changes in
fund balances - total governmental funds
ta arrive at changes in net assels of
governmental aclivilies $(307)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - RECONGILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{conlinued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

8. Explanalion of Cerlain differences between the Governmental Fund Statemeni of
Revenue. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide
Slatement of Aclivities {continued}

Ancther element of that reconciliation states thal “revenue in the gavernmenlal funds that
pravides current financial resources bul have been previcusly recorded as revenue in Lhe
stalement of activilies™. The delails of this dilference are as follows:

Special assessment colleclions $1.175.364

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, BUDGETARY [NFORMATION

Budgelary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented
using the same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the
exception of encumbrances and tax equivalent from the water utility. Actual (Budgetary
basis}) expendilures presented reflect aclual (GAAP} expenditures adjusted for
expenditures liquidated under the prior period budget and encumbrances expecled o be
liquidated under the currenl period budgel. Actual (budgelary basis) revenue present the
lax equivalent from the water utility as tax revenue while the GAAP basis statemenis
present this item as a transfer in.

A budget has been adopted for the general, debt service, library, capilal ouliay,
equipment replacement, capital improvement, streel improvement, sanitary sewer and
waler ulility funds. Budgels have not been formally adopted for ather funds.

The budgeled amounis presented include any amendments made during lhe year. The
City may authorize Wansfers of budgeled amounts within departments. Transfers
between deparlments and changes to the overall budget musl be approved by a two-
thirds vole of the common council. Supplemental appropriations during the year were
nol significant. Appropriations lapse at lhe end of the year unless specifically carried
over. Carryovers to the following year were not material. Budgels are adopled at lhe
funclion level of expenditure.

B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
The Cily controls expenditures al the function level (e.g. public safely}). Some
departmenls within funclions experienced expenditures thal exceeded departmental

appropriations. Details of thase ilems can be found in the budgel to aclual report on
Schedule 4.
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A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investment balances as disclosed on the accompanying financial slatements
are comprised of the following:

Petty cash $ 2,400
Carrying ameunt of deposils 46,002,100
Carrying ameoun! of invesiments 11,086,043

§ 57.090,545
Cash and invesiment balances disclosed herein include those of the Authorily, which are
an integral part of the pooled cash and inveslments of lhe City. Recenciliation to the
financial stalements:

Primary Governmenl:

Unresiricted cash and investments $ 16,997,469
Reslricted cash and invesimenls 132,035
Component Unit
Unrestricted cash and investments 370,686
Per Statemenlt of Fiduciary Net Assets _._39.590,355

$_57.090,545

Al year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was 546,002,100 and the bank
halance was $35,365,979. Deposils in each bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount
af $100,000 for inleresl bearing accounits and $100,000 for non-interest bearing
accounls. The bank balance covered by federal depaosilory insurance was 5430,384.

Of the remaining balance, $29,996,775 was collaleralized with securilies held by lhe
pledging financial inslitulion's trust deparlment or agent in the city's name and
$4,938,820 was uninsured and uncollateralized. The Cily's deposils are also insured in
the amount of $400,000 by the Slate of Wisconsin Deposil Guarantee Fund in
relationship to the total deposils covered and other legal implicalions, recovery of
material principal losses may not be signilicant lo the Cily. This coverage has not been
considered in computing the insured or collateralized amounts above.

The city’s inveslments are categorized lo give an indicalion of the level of custodial credit
risk assumed by the city at year end. Category 1 includes investmenls thal are insured
or registered or which are collateralized by or evidenced by securilies held by the City or
its agent in the City's name.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

A, CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Category 2 includes deposits collateralized with securities held by lhe pledging financial
institution’s lrust department or agent in the Cily's name, or uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counter party's lrust department or
agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uncollateralized deposits, and uninsured
and unregistered invesimenls with securities held by lhe counterparty, or by ils trust
department or agent but nol in the City’s name.

CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TQO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

Category Carrying Amount/
1 2 K] Fair Value

U.S. Treasury securilies 5 - % - 3 494,186 % 494,186
U.S. Agency securities - - 6,631,732 6,631,732
Corporate notes - - 968,150 968,150
3 - § - $ 8,094,068 8,094,068

Investment in Wisconsin Local Government lavestment Pool 2,169,235
U.8. Government Money Market Funds _ 822742

$  11,086.045

Investments in the local government investmenl paol are covered under a surely bond
issued by Financial Securily Assurance, Inc. The bond insures against losses arising
from principal defaults on substantially all types cf securilies acquired by the pool except
U.S. Governmenl and agency securilies. The bond provides unlimiled coverage on
principal losses, reduced by any FDIC and State of Wisconsin Guarantee Fund
insurance.

The City is exposed lo market risk lhrough its parlicipation in the Wisconsin Local
Government Invesimeni Pool and both market and credil risk through ownership of U.S.
Treasury and Agency securities and corporale noles. There were no violations of legal
provisions regarding deposils and investments.

Fluctuating cash flows during the year due 1o the timing of receipt of tax collections,

other revenue, and/or proceeds from barrawing sources may resull in uninsured balances
varying frem Lthe amounls reported at year and.
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B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consisl of accounts, laxes and special assessmenls from citizens and
others, Receivables are reported net of uncolleclible amounts. The reserve for bad
debts, principally for personal property taxes and a general valuation allowance, was
$37.130 at December 31, 2004. Other than special assessment receivables all other
receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in conneclion with receivables for revenue
lhalt are not considered 1o be available lo liguidate liabilities of the current period.
Properly laxes receivable for the subsequent year are not earned and can not be used lo
liquidate liabilities of {he current period. Governmental funds alsoc defer revenue
recognition in conneclion wilh resources thal have been received, bul nol yet earned. Al
the end of the current fiscal year, the various componenls of deferred and unearnad
revenue reported in the financial slalements were as follows:

Unavaitable Unearned Tolal

Governmental Funds:
Property taxes receivable 3 3 16,942,487 § 16,842.487
Special assessmenls not yel due 3,804,886 - 3,804.886

Total deferred/unearned revenue
for governmenlal funds $ 3,804,886 3 6,942,487 § 20,747,373

Componeni Unit:
Tax increment receivable 3 - § 2925386 § 2,025,386

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS
Sewer Equipment Replacement Accounl

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacling a sewer user charge syslem and
regulations of lhe Deparlment of Natural Rescurces. the Sanitary Sewer Fund - an
Enterprise Fund, incorporated an equipmenl replacement charge as a companent of the
rate slructure lo be used for significant mechanical equipment replacemenl as required
by the Wisconsin Department of Nalural Resources. Revenue generated from this
charge are accumulated and used for replacement of certain equipment. The balance in
this account at December 31, 2004 is $132,035.
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December 31§, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital agsels not being depreciated:
Land
Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements
Machinery & equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less; Accumulaled depreciation for;
Buildings & improvements
Machinery & equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated deprecialion
Net capital assets being depreciated

Governmetal Activilies Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

CITY OF FRANKLIN

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions  Disposilians Balance
$ 3482996 $ 1,294,995 5 - 3 4777991
20,730,209 460,068 - 21,190,277
11,108,414 597,154 (222,894} 11,482,674
2,594,723 5,728.538 - 8,323,261
34,433,346 6,785,760 (222,894) 40,996,212
3,352,177 474,599 - 3.826.776
6,021,809 843,941 (228,702) 6.637,048
23,859 85,854 - 108,713
9,397,845 1,404,394 (228,702) 10,573,537
25,035,501 5,381.366 5,808 30,422,675
3 28.518.497 § 6,676,361 3 5808 $ 35,200,666

Under provisions of GASB 34 implementation of infrastructure assets prior to 2003 may
be deferred unlil 2007, if necessary. The City of Franklin has elected to defer until, at
least 2005, the inclusion of prior infrastructure assets, The implication of this decision is
capital assets and investment in capital assets nel of indebtedness are lawer than what

could otherwise be expected.
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D. CAPITAL ASSETS {continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & human services
Culture & recreation
Canservation & development

Total governmental activities deprecialion expense

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements
Machinery & equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & impravements
Machinery & equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assels being deprecialed

Business-type Aclivilies Capital Assels,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Deprecialion expense was charged to funclions as follows.

Business-Type Aclivities:
Water
Sewer

3 231,870

677,307

328,665

3.488

157,096

5,967

31404304

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions  Disposiliens Balance
3 426,384 % - % - 3 426,384
1,248,910 1,132,043 (35.000) 2,345,953
1,729,746 144,087 - 1,873,833
75.009.527 16,132,737 {1.543) 91,140,721
77,988,183 17,408,867 {36,543) 95,360,507
527,781 56,520 (35,000} 549,301
910.342 111,271 - 1,021,613
10,552,055 2,263,335 {1.543) 12,813,847
11,950,178 2,431,126 (36,543) 14,384,761
65,998,005 14,977,741 80,975,746
§ 66,424,389 § 14,977,741 § - 3 81,402,130
3 578,708
541,105
$ 1,119,813
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December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

During 2004 the City reacquired Water Utility infrastructure assets at the expiration of a
30 year waler service agreement, The capital assets were recorded at the original
historical cost and accumufated depreciation was recorded for all periods prior to the
current year.

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Governmental funds:
General Water Utility 5 17113
Capilal Improvement Water Utility 102,000
119,113

Enlerprise funds:

Water Utility General 63,053
Sanitary Sewer 50,852
Sanitary Sewer Water Utility 53,977
167.882
Subtetal - Fund financial slatements 286,995
Less: Gavernment-wide eliminations 230,935

Tolal internal balances - Government-Wide
Slatement of Net Assels $ 56.060

The principal purpose of these interfund balances result fram the time lag between the
dates that (1} interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
oceur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between
funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid within one year.

For the statement of net assels, interfund balances owed within the governmentat
activities or business ~ lype activities are netted and eliminated.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Generally, transfers are used to {1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the
fund that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricled to debt
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund and (3) use
unrestricted revenue collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted
[or in other funds in accordance with budgetary autherizations.
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NGOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS {continued)

Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2004 were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Qui Amount

General Enterprise - Water Ulility $ 634,462

Debt Service Capital Projects - Development 337.199

Special Revenue - Library General 40,073
Capitai Projects Funds:

Utitity Improvement Debt Service 22,026

Equipment Replacement Special Revenue - Grants 3,341

Special Revenue - Donations 2,025

Capitat Improvemenls Capital Projects - Street Improvement 328,000

Capital Projects - Development 28,524

Capital Projects - Utility Improvement 1,877,989

Enterprise - Water Utility Capital Projects - Capital Improvement 18.548

Capital Projects - Development 113117

Enterprise - Sanitary Sewer Capilal Projects - Capital Improvement 2,136,442

Subtotal - Fund financial statements 5,541,746

Less: Government-wide eliminations __3.908.101

Tolal transfers - Government-wide Stalement of Activities §_1633.645

Component Unit Interfund Transaclions
Due to/from the primary government at December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Community Development Authority
TIF |l Business Park

Capital Projects Fund Agency Fund - Property Tax $ 2,925,386
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2004 were as follows;

Armounts
Balance Balance due within
12/31/03 Addilians Delelions 12/31/04 one year

Governmental Activities

General obligation debt $ 28,800,000 §

$ 4,000.000 % 24,800,000 § 1.350.,000

Compensated absences

Acerued vacation pay 255.375 599,124 589,861 264,638 264,638
Aceryed severance pay 745,849 101,820 40,213 807,456 31.870
Accrued compensatery lime 86,616 156,447 169,478 73,585 56,215
Total compensated absences 1,087,840 857,391 799, 552 1.145,679 352,723

Government aclivities
Long-term liabililies

$20.887.840 § 857,291 $ 4,799.552 § 25945679 $ 1,702.723

Business-type Activities

General obligation debt 3 - 8 - 8 - % - % .
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 29,715 33,965 30,283 33,397 33,397
Accrued severance pay 42,052 3,054 - 45,106 -
Accrued compensatory time 485 5,881 5,288 1,079 1,079
Total compensaled absences 72,253 42,900 35,971 79,582 34,476
Business-type actlivities
Long-term liabilities 3 72,253 $ 42900 % 35,571 % 79,582 3 34,476

General Obligation Debt

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credil of the
city. The notes and bonds will be retired by future property tax levies, special assessment
collections and designated landfill revenue.

The Cily used available funds, to repay the remaining 31,750,000 in maturilies aof the

$5.475,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes issued in 1996 at inlerest rales ranging
fram 4,0% to 5.0% on September 1, 2004, an early redemption call date.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM QBLIGATIONS (conlinued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable are as foliows:

Balance
Date of Interest  Principal Interest Qriginal Qutstanding
Type Issue Rate Payable  Payable Amount 12/31

General obligation promissory notes

5/ 1/99 3543
5/15/01 4.25-4.60

General obligaticn refunding bonds

9 1196 4.0-51
4/15/01 4.3-5.40

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on general obligation notes and bonds

payable are as follows:

Year

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010 - 2014
2015 - 2019
2020 - 2021

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2004 are

5/1/00-09 5M1&11/f 3 7,850,000 3 5,050,000

3710211 318 81 10000000 9,025,000
91197-07 3/1& 91 3,250,000 850.000
310221 318 9 10,000,000 _ 9875000

$ 24,800,000

$134,097.275 and $109,297,275, respeclively,
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Balance
Qutstanding

Principal Interest Total 12131
$ 24,800,000
1350000 § 1,123,504 $ 2473504 23,450,000
1,600,000 1,031,885 2631885 21,850,000
2,550,000 955,198 3,505,198 19,300,000
2,625,000 848,141 3,473,141 16,675,000
2,650,000 732,085 3,382,085 14,025,600
6,055,000 2,438,851 8,493,851 7.970,000
4,930,000 1,412,238 6,342,238 3.040,000
3,040,000 153,260 3,193,260 -

$ 24.800,000 $ 8695162 § 33,495,162



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Becember 31, 2004

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (conlinued)
CoNDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Twelve series of industrial Revenue Bonds originally issued with an aggregale principal
amount of $109,485.000 are outstanding with a December 31, 2004 balance of
$103,750,846. During lhe year one issue of $4,500,000 was retired.

CoMPONENT UniT DEBT

Summary of Companent Unit Long-Term Liabililies

General Long-Term liabililies for the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2004 are
summarized below:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due within
1231103 Additions _Reduclions 12/31/04 one year
Lease revenue
bonds payable § 22.270,000 $ - §2.240,000 $ 20,030,000 $ 2,315,000

The Autharily issued Redevelopment Lease Revenue Bonds for the purpose of (inancing a
loan from the Authorily lo the Cily lo finance project cosls associated with the City's Tax
lncremental Dislricl [I. The bonds are not general obligations of the Autherity or the Cily,
but are secured by the obligation of the City to make paymenls under a lease belween the
Authority and the City. The lease generally provides for paymenis by lhe City to the
Authorily in amounls equal lo the principal and interest payments on the bonds on the
dates such payments are due.

Dateof Interest Principal  Interest Original Balance
Type Issue Rale Payable Payable Amount 12/31

Redevelopment Lease Revenue Bonds
7A/98 6.65-6.95 4/1/04-08 4/1&101 $ 5275000 $ 4,355,000
7/1/98 3.90-520 4/1/93-13 4118101 18,145.000 15,675,000

$ 20,030,000
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F. LonG TERM OBLIGATIONS {conlinued)

COMPONENT UNIT DEBT {Conlinued)
Annual principal and interest paymenls to maturily on Redevelopmen! Lease Revenue
Bonded Oebt are as lollows:

Balance
Year Principal Interest Tolal 12131
2004 % 20,030,000
2005 3 2,315,006 $ 996,836 $ 3,311,836 17,715,000
2006 2,750,000 858,780 3,608,780 14,865,000
2007 2,820,000 705,335 3,625.335 12,145,000
2008 2,910.000 544,433 3,454,433 9,235,000

2009 1,715,000 420,860 2,135,960 7,520,000
2010- 2013 7.520.000 771,030 8,291.030 .

$ 20,030,000 % 4,297,374 § 24.327.374

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES
Governmental Activities
Government activilies net assets reported on the governmenl-wide stalement of nel
assels at December 31, 2004 include the following:
Invested in capilal assets.net of related debt

Land §  4.777.9M1
Other capital assets, nel of accumulaled depreciation 30,422,675
Less: related long term debt outstanding (20,995,114)
Total invested in capital assels 14,205,552
Restricled for:
Emergency medical services 11,261
Utility improvement 765,805
Development 2,743,066
Donalions 77,629
Granls 58,654
Tolal restricted 3,656,415
Unrestricted 8,953,745
Total governmental aclivilies net assets $ 26,815,712
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANGES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial stalements at December 31.

2004 include the following:

Reserved
Major funds:
General Fund - invenlories and prepaid items 5 25,928
General Fund - Encumbrances 103,000
Debl Service Fund - subsequent year debt service 126,566

Non Major funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Library services 127,274
Emergency medical services 11,261
Danations 77,629
Grants 58.654
Capital Projecl Funds:
Encumbrances 16,000
Capital Improvement 81,000
Development 2,743,066
Utility improvement __ 7685.805
Total reserved $ 4,139,183
Unreserved:
Major Fund - General Fund
Designated for working capital $ 3,236.000
Designated for future expenditures 740,000
Undesignated 2,174,910
Total General Fund 6,153.910

Non Major funds:
Special Revenue funds

Designated for library services 108,621
Designaled for economic development aclivilies 59,727
Designated for civic celebration activities 15,731
Total Special Revenue funds 184,079
Capital projecl funds
Designated for Capital Qutlay 97,459
Designated for Equipment Replacement 1,884,151
Designated for Capital Improvement 1,408,637
Designated for Street Improvement 290.041
Total Capital Praoject Funds 3.680,288
Tolal Unreserved Funds $ 10.015277
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H. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System

All eligible prelective Cily of Franklin employees participate in lhe Wisconsin Retiremen!
System {“‘Syslem”), a cost-sharing mulliple-employer defined benefil public emplioyee
relirement system (‘PERS"). All permanent employees expecled to work over 600 hours
a year are eligible lo parlicipate in the Syslem. Covered employees in lhe general
calegory are required by slalute o contribute 5.6% of their salary {4.5% lor proleclive
occupations with social securily, and 3.2% for proleclive occupations withoul social
securily) to the plan. Employers may make thesa contribulions to the plan on behalf of
lhe employeeas.

Employers are required to coniribute an acluarially determined amounl necessary to fund
the remaining projected cost of fulure benefils.

The payroll for employees covered by the System far the year ended December 31, 2004
was $6,224,222; lhe employer's lotal payroll was $11,287,256. The total required
contribution paid entirely by the employer for the year ended December 31, 2004 was
$1,089,239 or 17.5% of covered payroll. Of the total required contribution, 100 percent
was conlributed for the current year. Tolal contributions for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 were $947,469 and $898.351, respectively, equal to lhe required
contributions lor each year.

Protective employees who retire at or after age 53 with 25 years or more of service or
age 54 wilh less lhan 25 years of service are entitled o receive retirement benefils.
Proteclive employees may retire at age 50 and receive actuarially reduced benefils. The
factars influencing the benefil are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable
service and (3} a formula lactor, Final Average Earnings is the average of |he protective
employee's three highesl years earnings. Proteclive employees terminating covered
empioyment before becoming eligible for retiremenl benefits may withdraw lheir
conlributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefits, For
employees beginning participaticn after January 1, 1990 and no longer aclively employed
on or after April 24, 1998, credilable service in each ol five years is required for eligibilily
for a retirement annuity. Parlicipants employed prier to 1990 and on or alter April 24,
1998 are immedialely vested,

The Syslem also provides dealh and disabilily benefits for employees. Eligibilily far and
the amaunt of all benefils is determined under Chapler 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes,
The Syslem issues an annual financial report that may be oblained by wriling to the
Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.C. Box 7931, Madison, W1 53707-7931.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

H. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (conlinued)
Public Works Employees Pension Plan

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Cily is also a participant in the Cily of Franklin Public Works Employees' Pension
Plan, a non-contribulory single employer delined benefil pension plan covering eligible
public works employees. The assels of lhis Plan are administered by Principal Life
Insurance Company. An annual financial report may be obtained by writing lo the plan
administralor at Principal Financial Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des Moines, 1A 50306-9396,

Empioyees allaining the age of 60 are enlitled te annual benefils of 1.98% of average
compensalion multiplied by the number of complele years of service subsequent to
January 1, 1356, Average compensation is defined as lhe monthly total pay plus salary
deferrals, compensation and overlime received [or the three consecutive years oul of the
ten latest years which gives the highest average. Employees may retire early and
receive reduced benefits at age 55 with al least len years of service.

Disgability benefits equivalen! to expecied benefils at normal retirement date are paid until
normal retirement dale, death or recovery. If an aclive employee dies, his or her
beneficiary receives a lump-5um ¢ash paymenl equal lo the parlicipant's accumulation al
dale of death or an annuily benefit deferred until participant's earliesl relirement dale.

If an employee terminales his or her employmenl with the Cily. the employee has lhe
option of accepling either normal retirement benelits at normal retiremenl date, or a
lump-sum cash payment ol parlicipant's vested accumulations. An employee becomes
50% vested after five years of service and 100% vested aller len years.

Employees do nol make pension contributions. The Cily contributes all amounts
necessary lo fund the pension plan, using the aggregate actuarial cost method,

Funding Policy

The City's funding policy is to provide yearly contribulions at actuarially determined rates
lhat, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are designed lo accumulate
sufficient assels to pay benefils when due.

Curing the year ended December 31, 2004, contributions lotaling $204,665 were made in
accerdance with conlribulion requirements determined by an acluarial valuation of the
pension plan as of January 1, 2004 Employer conlribulions represented 19.2% of current
year covered payroll.
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H. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continuad)
ANNUAL PENSION COST

For 2004, lhe Cily's annual pension cost of $204,665 for the pension plan was equal lo
the City’s required and actual contributions. The required conlribution was determined
during the January 1, 2004 actuarial valuation using lhe aggregate actuarial cost methad.
The aggregate actuarial cost method does not idenlify or separately amortize unfunded
actuarial liabilities. Significant acluarial assumptions include: (a) a rale of relurn on the
investment of present and fulure assets ranging from 5.0% to 7.0% compounded
annually, (b} projected salary increases of 2.00% per year compounded annually,
altribulable lo inflation, and (c) additicnal projecled salary ingreases ranging from 1.88%
lo 5.10% per year, depending on age, allsibutable lo seniority/merit. The assumptions
did nol include post retirement benefit increases. The acluarial value ol assets was
determined using lechniques thal smooth the effects of short-term valalility in the market
value of investments over a four-year period.

Three Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage MNetl
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost {APC) Confributed  Qbligation
12/31/2004  § 204,665 100% 3 -
12/31/2003 191.468 100% .
123172002 191,364 100% -

Aclual Actuarial Accrued Unfunded  Funded Percenlage of
Valualion Assel Liability {AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ralio Covered  Covered Payroll
Dale Value - Aggregale  [(BJ-{(A)]__ [(A){B)| __ Payroll [(CI(EY]
1/1/2004 § 2,563.079 3 2,563,079 - 100% § 1,064.464 %
171/2003 2,501,700 2,501,700 - 100% 990,311 %
11112002 2,157,178 2,157,178 - 100% 979,294 Yo

There were no significant changes in acluarial assumplions during the valuation year
ended January 1, 2004.

I. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Based on Cily ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-proteclive employees (except

public works employees} parlicipate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (lhe
"Plan"). The Plan assels are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED MOTES ON ALL FUNDS (conlinued)

H. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN {continued)

Employees after completing six months of service wilh the Cily are eligible 1o participate.
The Plan requires lhe Cily to make an periodic conlributions to each participant's
account equal to 10% of such parlicipant's annual compensalion. Employees may but
are nal required lo make condributions, A participant's accrued benefit for City
contributions is 100% vesled and nonforfeilable upon death, normal relirement, early
retirement or permanent and tolal disability as definad in the Plan. If employment is
terminated for any olher reason, each parlicipanl's accrued henefit vests at various
percentages, based on years of service, During 2004, the City made the required
contribution amounling to $310.282, or 10% of covered payroll and employees made
%4,551 in addilional voluntary contributions to the plan. The City may make amendments
to the Plan.

. POST RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The City provides 1o longer lerm employees certain health care benefits at a reduced
cosl during the period from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. The cosl
of this reliree heailth care benelit is recognized as expenditures when premiums are due.
For 2004, 19 relired employees and their dependents received lhis benefit al a cost lo
the City of approximalely $101.379.

J. GCONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Fram time lo time the Cily is party lo various claims and legal proceedings. Although lhe
outcome of such matlers in nol presently delerminable, it is the opinion of Cily
management and the City allorney that the liketihood is remole thal any such claims or
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the City's financial posilion or resulls
of operalions,

The Cily has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject lo
review and audil by the granlor agencies. Such audits could lead to requesls for
reimbursements to the granlor agency for expenditures disallewed under terms of the
granls. Managemenl believes such disallowances, if any, would be immalerial,

The Cily receives impacl fees for new development projects. The lees are lo be used to
fund specific projects within a specific period of time. In the event the projects are not
compleled or lhe time period elapses, the Cily will be required lo refund the impact fees
ta awners of property that the fees were ariginally charged.

The Cily has no material oulstanding contractual commitments relating lo various Public
Works projects and equipment purchases al December 31. 2004,
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J. CONTINGENGIES AND COMMITMENTS (conlinued)

Funding for the operaling budget of the Cily comes from many sources, including
properly taxes, grants and aids from other unils of governmenl, user fees, fines and
permits and other miscellaneous revenue, The State of Wiscensin provides a variety of
aid and grant programs that benefit the Cily. Those aid and gran! programs are
dependent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislalure,
lhrough their budgel process. The Slale of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget
problems and is considering numercus allernatives including reducing aid to local
governments. Any changes made by the Slale lo funding or eligibility of Iocal aid
programs could have a significant impact en the fulure operating resulls of the City.

K. RISK MANANGEMENT

The Cily is exposed lo various risks of loss related lo larts, theft, darmage or destruction
al assels, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers’ compensalion claims
thal the Cily carries commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance
coverage occurred for any risk of less in the pasl year, and seltled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan o employees for which
the City is self-insured. This aclivity is accounted for in the Cily's Self Insurance Internal
Service Fund, Group medical and denlal cosls are charged lo Cily deparlmenis and
retirees parlicipaling in the program. A third party administralor handles claims
payments. The City carries stop loss insurance for losses in excess of $50,000 per year
per Individual. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that loss has occurred and the
amounl of the loss can be reasonably eslimated. Liabilities include an estimated amount
for claims that have been incurred bul not reporled ("IBNR"). Changes in the balance of
claims payable for the three years ended December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Current
Balance Claims and Balance
Beginning Changes in Claims End
of Year Estimates Payments of Year
2004 $ 294,500 § 2,248.23] $ 2,183,233 $ 352,500
2003 214,500 2,247 593 2,167,593 294,500
2002 204,500 1,503.914 1,493,914 214,500

Page 68



APPENDIX B

FORM OF

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and
delivered by the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") in connection
with the issuance of $10,000,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, dated January 1, 2006
(the "Securities™). The Securities are being issued pursuant to an Authorizing Resolution
adopted by the Governing Body of the Issuer on December 6, 2005 (the "Resolution™) and
delivered to Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the "Purchaser") on
the date hereof. Pursuant to the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to provide
continuing disclosure of certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of
the occurrence of certain events. In addition, the Issuer hereby specifically covenants and agrees
as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to
assist the Participating Underwriters within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in
complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). References in this Disclosure Certificate to holders of
the Securities shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities. This Disclosure Certificate
constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule. Any filing under this Disclosure
Certificate may be made solely by transmitting such filing to the Texas Municipal Advisory
Council (the "MAC") as provided at http://www.disclosureusa.org unless the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission has withdrawn the interpretive advice in its letter to the
MAC dated September 7, 2004.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report™ means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Audited Financial Statements" means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are
currently prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in substantially the same form.

"Final Official Statement" means the Final Official Statement dated December 6, 2005
delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the MSRB.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer.

"Governing Body" means the Common Council of the Issuer or such other body as may
hereafter be the chief legislative body of the Issuer.

"Issuer" means the City of Franklin, Wisconsin which is the obligated person with respect
to the Securities.
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"Issuer Contact™ means the City Clerk of the Issuer who can be contacted at 9229 West
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132, phone (414) 425-7500, fax (414) 425-6428.

"Material Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board located at 1900 Duke Street,
Suite 600, Alexandria, Virginia 22314.

"NRMSIR" means any nationally recognized municipal securities information repository
as recognized from time to time by the SEC for purposes of the Rule.

"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities
(including the Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the
Securities.

"Repository™ means each NRMSIR and each SID, if any.

"Rule” means SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and official
interpretations thereof.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"SID" means any public or private repository or entity designated by the State of
Wisconsin as a state information depository for the purpose of the Rule. As of the date of this
Certificate, there is no SID.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements.

@) The Issuer shall, not later than 270 days after the end of the Fiscal Year,
commencing with the year that ended December 31, 2005, provide each Repository with an
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer may be
submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and that, if Audited Financial
Statements are not available within 270 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial
information will be provided, and Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to each
Repository when and if available.

(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the Repositories an Annual Report by
the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to
the NRMSIRs, the MSRB and any SID.

(©) The Issuer shall determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual
Report the name and address of each NRMSIR and each SID, if any.
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Section 4. Content of Annual Report. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the Audited Financial Statements, current general fund budget summary
and updates of the following sections of the Final Official Statement to the extent such financial
information and operating data are not included in the Audited Financial Statements:

1. Tax Levies, Rates and Collections
2. Equalized Valuations
3. Indebtedness of the City — Direct Indebtedness

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities,
which have been submitted to each of the Repositories or the SEC. If the document incorporated
by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The Issuer shall
clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Material Events.

@) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events if material with respect to the Securities:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
Securities;

7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities;

8. Securities calls;

9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the
Securities; and

11. Rating changes.

(b) Whenever a Material Event occurs, the Issuer shall as soon as possible determine
under applicable legal standards if such event would constitute material information for holders
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of Securities, provided, that any event under subsection (a) (8), (9) or (11) will always be
deemed to be material.

(c) If the Issuer determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Material Event
would be material, the Issuer shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with either all
NRMSIRs or with the MSRB and with any SID. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of
Material Events described in subsections (a) (8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection
any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected
Securities pursuant to the Resolution.

(d) Unless otherwise required by law and subject to technical and economic
feasibility, the Issuer shall employ such methods of information transmission as shall be
requested or recommended by the designated recipients of the Issuer's information.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under the
Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all the Securities.

Section 7. Issuer Contact; Agent. Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.
Additionally, the Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist
it in carrying out its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution
or this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is
supported by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment
or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings to violate the Rule. The provisions
of this Disclosure Certificate constituting the Undertaking or any provision hereof, shall be null
and void in the event that the Issuer delivers to each then existing NRMSIR and the SID, if any,
an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that those portions of the Rule
which require this Disclosure Certificate are invalid, have been repealed retroactively or
otherwise do not apply to the Securities. The provisions of this Disclosure Certificate
constituting the Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of the
Securities, but only upon the delivery by the Issuer to each then existing NRMSIR and the SID,
if any, of the proposed amendment and an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the
effect that such amendment, and giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of
this Disclosure Certificate and by the Issuer with the Rule.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material
Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have
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no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event.

Section 10. Default. (a) The Issuer has never failed to comply in all material respects
with any previous undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material
events.

(b) In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate any holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary and
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate. A
default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to
the Securities and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of
the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and
shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities
effective the 5th day of January, 2006.

Thomas M. Taylor
Mayor

(SEAL)

Sandra L. Wesolowski
City Clerk
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